
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tom J. Rankin 
Vice-Mayor Tara Walter  
Councilmember Vallarie Woolridge 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
Councilmember Becki Guilin 
Councilmember John Anderson 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
 
 
Monday, October 17, 2016 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM
 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Monday, 
October 17, 2016, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at  775 N. 
Main Street, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Rankin __, Walter__, Woolridge__, Hawkins__,  

Guilin__, Anderson__, Wall____. 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may 
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or 
may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall 
not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters 
are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Introduction of the 2016/2017 Town of Florence Information Technology Interns. (Trenton 
Shaffer) 

 
b. Proclamation declaring October 16 – 22, 2016 as National Friends of Libraries Week. 

(Mayor Rankin) 
 

c. Presentation from the 150th Anniversary Ad Hoc Committee. (Mayor Rankin and Bryan 
Hughes) 

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Approval of the purchase of traffic signal equipment from Sierra Transportation and 

Technologies, in an amount not to exceed $69,416.43. (Chris Salas) 
 

b. Approval of the Coolidge-Florence Elks Lodge Special Event Liquor License application 
to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control, for a Sun City Anthem private 
event, to be held on October 21, 2016. (Lisa Garcia) 
 

c. Authorization to enter into a contract with Creative Paving Solutions, LLC, for 
sandblasting and sealing improvement on Main Street, between Ruggles and 12th Street, 
in an amount not to exceed $40,000. (Chris Salas) 
 

d. Authorization to enter into a Lease Agreement between the Town of Florence, and 
Weagant Law Offices, PLC, for the Brunenkant Building. (Jennifer Evans) 
 

e. Proclamation declaring October 2016 as National Community Planning Month. (Mark 
Eckhoff) 
 

f. Approval of the September 6 and September 16, 2016 Council minutes. 
 
g. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
 

i. June 29, 2016 and August 31, 2016 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes. 
ii. June 15, 2016 Library Advisory Board minutes. 
iii. July 7, 2016 Planning and Zoning Commission minutes. 

 
8.   NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a contract to AJP Electric Inc., for the construction of 

the future traffic signal, to be located at the intersection of Hunt Highway and Attaway 
Road, in an amount not to exceed $101,520.90. (Chris Salas) 
 

b. Resolution No. 1602-16: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE FY 2016-2017 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN. (Scott Barber)   
 

9. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

10. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
11. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



12. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for the purpose of discussions 
or consultations with designated representatives of the public body and/or legal counsel 
pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4), and (A)(7) and to consider its position 
and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 

 
a. Regarding Arizona Department of Environmental Quality proceedings. 

 
b. Regarding potential agreements and pending or contemplated claims involving land use 

and easements in the Town.   
 

c. Regarding condemnation case filed by Southwest Environmental Utilities LLC, Case No. 
CV2 01601374. 
 

d. Regarding contract negotiations on the Town’s allocation from Central Arizona Project. 
 
13. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of 
obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON OCTOBER 13, 2016, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6a. 

MEETING DATE:  October 17, 2016  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Information Technology  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Trenton Shaffer, Interim I.T. Manager  
 
SUBJECT:  Information Technology Student Internship 
Program 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Information Technology Student Internship  Meeting Date: October 17, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Introduction of the Information Technology Student Internship Program and students 
currently participating. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This discussion is intended to provide Council with information about the Information 
Technology Student Internship Program, as well as introduce both students participating 
in the program to Councilmembers. 
 
The Town of Florence Information Technology Department was looking for ways to 
collaborate with Florence High School regarding its Government Access Channel 
(channel 11) broadcasting needs.  Through the month of September 2016, the I.T. 
Manager and Deputy Town Manager had open discussions with Florence High School 
staff members to determine the best course of action.  It was determined the best 
partnership would be to utilize student interns that were participating in the High School 
multimedia broadcasting class. 
 
This is a mutually beneficial relationship, the Town of Florence will benefit from the 
expertise of students who are specializing in multimedia and studio recording 
techniques, and the students will benefit from the opportunity to directly apply their 
training by providing professional programming to the Town audio/video broadcasts. 
 
In addition, it was agreed to allow the Town of Florence full access to the Florence High 
School Media Studio.  This professional studio provides a high quality green screen, 
soundproofing, optimal lighting, and a teleprompter.  This studio will be utilized to 
provide additional audio/video programming capabilities that were previously not 
available to the Town. 
 
The range of projects that student interns could be involved will vary depending on the 
needs of the Information Technology Department.  Primarily, they will be focused on 



Subject: Information Technology Student Internship  Meeting Date: October 17, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

updating and providing additional programming for Channel 11 in addition to providing 
assistance with audio/video recording and broadcasting of Town meetings.  
 
The first student, Ankhoa “Khoa” Nguyen, is a senior at Florence High School and 
currently in his 4th year of multimedia broadcasting.  He exhibits expertise in audio/video 
broadcasting, programming, and setup.  In addition to his excellent broadcasting skills, 
Khoa is an avid video game player, competing in funded competitions which are 
broadcast and streamed world-wide.  Khoa has great attention to detail which really 
shines through in his school broadcasts as well as his online gaming broadcasts. 
 
Our second student, Augustin “Austin” Rodriguez, is a senior at Florence High School 
and currently in his 4th year of multimedia broadcasting.  He brings a wealth of 
broadcasting experience to the table.  Austin works to streamline broadcasting 
processes, all while providing professional quality audio/video effects.  Austin 
participated in the Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA) competition and placed 
4th in the State of Arizona and 72nd at the national competition. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This is a paid internship. Both students are under the current minimum wage pay rate of 
$8.05/hr.  They will each work on average 10 hours per week, with additional hours 
worked periodically for Town Council meetings, Planning and Zoning meetings, or any 
additional special meetings that require audio/video broadcasting. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Continue to build upon the Information Technology Student Internship Program 
providing training and a career path for students, increasing the quality of the Town of 
Florence broadcasts, and providing better overall programming for Channel 11 and our 
citizens. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6b. 

MEETING DATE:  October 17, 2016  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Library 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Rosemary Bebris, Library Director 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject: National Friends of Libraries Week Proclamation Meeting Date: October 17, 2016  
Page 1 of 1 

 
SUBJECT:  Proclamation declaring October 16 – 22, 2016 as 
National Friends of Libraries Week   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Proclamation declaring October 16 – 22, 2016 as National Friends of Libraries Week. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff is requesting that the Mayor issue a Proclamation declaring October 16-22, 2016, 
as National Friends of Libraries Week 2016.  National Friends of Libraries Week is a 
time to celebrate the friends’ gift of their time and commitment to the Town of Florence - 
providing the Florence Community Library with resources for additional programming, 
much needed equipment, support for children’s summer reading, and special events 
throughout the year. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Council proclaims October 16 – 22, 2016 as National Friends of Libraries Week. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
2016 National Friends of Libraries Week Proclamation 



 

 

 

 

 
NATIONAL FRIENDS OF LIBRARIES WEEK PROCLAMATION 

 
Whereas, Friends of the Florence Public Library, Inc. raise money that enables 

our library to move from good to great - providing the resources for additional 
programming, much needed equipment, support for children’s summer reading, and 
special events throughout the year; and 
 

Whereas, the work of the Friends highlights on an on-going basis the fact that 
our library is the cornerstone of the community providing opportunities for all to engage 
in the joy of life-long learning and connect with the thoughts and ideas of others from 
ages past to the present; and 
 

Whereas, the Friends understand the critical importance of well-funded libraries 
and advocate to ensure that our library gets the resources it needs to provide a wide 
variety of services to all ages including access to print and electronic materials, along 
with expert assistance in research, readers’ advisory, and children’s services; and 
 

Whereas, the Friends’ gift of their time and commitment to the library sets an 
example for all in how volunteerism leads to positive civic engagement and the 
betterment of our community; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that I, Tom J. Rankin, Mayor of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, proclaim October 16-22, 2016, as “National Friends of 
Libraries Week” in Florence, Arizona, and urge everyone to join the Friends of the 
Library and thank them for all they do to make our library and community so much 
better.  
 

In witness thereof, I hereby set my hand and affix the Official Seal of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 17rd day of October 2016.      

 

          
                                                                    ______________________________      

            Tom J. Rankin, Mayor          
 
                                                                      

ATTEST: 
 
 

________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  October 17, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Christopher A. Salas, Public 
Works Director/Town Engineer 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject:  Sierra Transportation & Technologies              Meeting Date:  October 17, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

 
SUBJECT:   Purchase of Various Traffic Signal 
Equipment from Sierra Transportation & Technologies 

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the purchase of various traffic signal equipment from Sierra 
Transportation & Technologies, for the future traffic signal to be located at the 
intersection of Hunt Highway and Attaway Road, in an amount not to exceed 
$69,416.43. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
A Traffic Engineering Study was performed and sealed on January 7, 2015, for 
the intersection of Hunt Highway and Attaway Road.  Based on the analysis, two 
of the nine warrants were met, and based on this criteria, a traffic signal should 
be installed.  
 
Currently, the Town is borrowing portable traffic signal trailers from Pinal County 
but needs to return the trailers by January 1, 2017.  
 
Town staff would prefer to supply all the hardware to the contractor and only pay 
the contractor for labor.  This strategy can often save 25% to 30% of the total 
cost of building a traffic signal.  In order to purchase the traffic signal equipment 
staff has researched available contracts with co-operative purchasing language 
and has chosen to use existing MCDOT contracts. 
 
This particular Request for Council Action includes; 

 Traffic signal heads and mounts 
 Illuminated street name signs 
 Vehicle Detection System 
 Battery backup and meter pedestal 
 Traffic signal cabinet (fully equipped) 



Subject:  Sierra Transportation & Technologies              Meeting Date:  October 17, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

The design of the signal is underway but not yet completed.  Because the design 
is not completed the overall approval amount includes a 30% contingency. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The fiscal impact is $69,416.43 and will be funded by the Highway User Revenue 
Fund, Capital Improvement project titled “Attaway/Hunt Intersection Improvements”.  
There will be no impact to the General Fund. 
 
The Town and Sierra Transportation & Technologies agree that this is entered 
into by the parties, as a cooperative purchase, pursuant to Maricopa County 
Traffic Signal Poles and Components Contract, renewed/effective July 1, 2016.   

Services will be obtained following the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Section 5.63 
Purchases of $25,000 or More (specifically, 5.6321 of Vendor Selection). 

5.632 Vendor Selection 

           5.6321 Alternative purchase methods are identified if approved by 
necessity or by the Town Manager as indicated by Emergency/Sole 
Source Purchase, cooperative purchase, state contract or any other 
method authorized. The Finance Director reviews for budget 
availability and bidding procedures. The Town Manager reviews for 
need. 

Based on conversation with Maricopa County, Sierra Transportation and 
Technologies was chosen as the best overall value.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Town Council authorize the purchase of various traffic 
signal equipment for the future traffic signal, to be located at the intersection of 
Hunt Highway and Attaway Road, in an amount not to exceed $69,416.43. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Equipment Quotes 
 MCDOT Contract 

 













TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF MARICOPA COUNTY SOLICITATION/CONTRACT NO.  SERIAL 

13043-C FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLES, HARDWARE, VIDEO DETECTION AND TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
CONTROLLER COMPONENTS 

 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 17th day of October, 2016  
(“Effective date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the “Town”), and Sierra 
Transportation and Technologies, LLC (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract Documents 
referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant contract” contemplated in the Maricopa County 
Solicitation/Contract No. 13043-C for Traffic Signal Poles, Hardware, Video Detection and Traffic Signal 
Controller Components effective July 1, 2016.   The Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to 
in this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town the materials and services described in 
the attached scope of materials and services set forth in Exhibit “1” (“Scope of Materials” or 
“Goods”). The Contractor shall provide the Goods in accordance with the schedule attached in 
Exhibit “1”, and the Contract Documents, including all exhibits to the Master Contract including 
but not limited to the Contractor’s Response Serial 13043-C, Specifications, Technical 
Requirements, Attachment A, and Special Terms and Conditions.  Contractor agrees, at its own 
cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish all of the equipment, personnel and 
materials necessary to provide, in a good and substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the 
Town, the Goods. 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties that should 
there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the Master Contract, or the 
Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the provisions of the Contract Documents shall 
control and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said 
Proposal conflicting herewith or the Master Contract, unless expressly state herein. 

3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and valuable 
consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative solicitation/contract 
(Maricopa County Solicitation/Contract No. 13043-C for Traffic Signal Poles, Hardware, Video 
Detection and Traffic Signal Controller Components effective July 1, 2016) is in full force and 
effect, and all terms and conditions of the Master Contract are incorporated by reference into 
this Contract, creating an agreement identical in terms between the Town and Contractor.  In 
the Master Contract, the terms: “County”, “Maricopa County” “Using Agency”, shall be deemed 
to be and refer to the Town of Florence, and the terms: “Contractor”, “Respondent” or “firm” 
shall be deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following  contract documents, which by 
reference are incorporated herein: 
A. This signed Contract. 
B. The solicitation Documents for the Maricopa County Solicitation/Contract No. 13043-C for 

Traffic Signal Poles, Hardware, Video Detection and Traffic Signal Controller Components 
effective July 1, 2016, between Maricopa County and Sierra Transportation and 
Technologies, LLC., including, but not limited to: Instructions, Fee Schedules; Notices; 
Checklists; Requirements for Proposers; General Conditions; Special Conditions; Scope of 
Work; Work Schedule; Certificates of Compliance; Warranties for Work; Work Forms; 
Attachments; Price Sheets; Questionnaires; Response Forms; Specifications and Pricing 
Sheets; Special Provisions and Specifications; Technical Provisions and Specifications; 



Schedules; Cooperative Authorizations; Specifications; Technical Requirements; Special 
Terms and Conditions; Attachment A; Contract No. Serial 13043-C; Maps and Addenda (the 
“Contract Documents” or “Master Contract”). 

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract Documents and 
Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Price Sheet), and shall not exceed $69,416.43. 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date through 
satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and acceptance of the Services 
and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to the terms of this Contract. 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the American with 

Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free 
Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the Town  that the 

Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and are contractually obligated 
to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees 
and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this 

Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and including termination of this 
Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor’s 

employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is 
complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town 
in regard to any such inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment records 

of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractor’s 
Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any random 
verifications performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have materially breached 

the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or subcontractor establishes that it 
has complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 
274B of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements 
prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into 

with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this Contract or any 
subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona 
by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of any 
structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 

 
H. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into 

with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this Contract or any 
subcontract.  

 



8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  If payment is to 
be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and progress reports which clearly 
indicate the progress to date and the amount of compensation due by virtue of that progress.  
All invoices shall be for Services completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 

9. TERMINATION.  Town may terminate this Contract, or any part thereof for its sole convenience, 
at any time without penalty or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for Services or Goods 
satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable 
discretion, based on the Goods and/or Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an independent 
contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this Contract, and shall not be 
deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, or to have any other legal relationship 
with Town. 

11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be deemed to have 
been given when personally served or when mailed by certified or registered mail, addressed as 
follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 
85132; and Contractor: Sierra Transportation and Technologies, LLC, 5610 N. Lyle Court 
Litchfield Park, AZ 85340, Debra Lesan. 

12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its successors, 
assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Florence, its 
Mayor and Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees, from 
and against all demands, claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but 
not limited to attorney fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), and all claim 
adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted from 
the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods of the Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier 
of Contractor’s subcontractors related to the Goods in the performance of this Contract.  
Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Town of Florence, its Mayor and  
Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees shall arise in 
connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, 
disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use of 
resulting therefrom, caused by Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods in the 
performance of this Contract including any employee of the Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s 
subcontractors or any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, the 
Contractor may be legally liable, including Town of Florence. 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to the requirements 
of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all Goods and Services will be performed 
in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  The Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services 
provided by Contractor shall not relieve Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If 
any Goods or Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the 
Town, Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services 
until they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s reasonable satisfaction.  
Unless otherwise agree, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be new, unused, of most current 
manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of defects in materials and workmanship, will be 
provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) year unless 
otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance with manufacturer’s published 
specifications. 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing Policy govern this 
procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by this reference.  



15. GOVERNING LAW. This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in 
accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without reference to 
choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. The exclusive forum selected for any 
proceeding or suit in law or equity arising from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, 
Arizona. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the Effective Date set 
forth above. 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 

By: _________ _ 

Tom Rankin, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

Approved as to Form 

Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 

Date: __________ _ 

CONTRf,CTOR ~~ cl~/ LtC 

By~ ';&z,q~ Date: 10/11 b<e 
Its: ~:Ca/Le 













































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7b. 

MEETING DATE:  October 17, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:    Coolidge-Florence Elk’s Lodge 2350 Special 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Coolidge-Florence Elk’s Lodge Special Event Permit  Meeting Date: October 17, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

Event Liquor License Application 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control on the Coolidge-
Florence Elk’s Lodge 2350 application for a Special Event Liquor License for October 21, 
2016. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Coolidge-Florence Elk’s Lodge 2350 has submitted an application for a Special Event 
Liquor License for a Sun City Anthem private event, on October 21, 2016, from 1:00 pm to 
12:00 am, at the Union Center, 3925 N. Sun City Boulevard, Florence, Arizona.   
 
The purpose of a Special Event License is to allow charitable, civic, fraternal, political, or 
religious organizations to sell and serve spirituous liquor for consumption as a fundraiser.  
Special Event Licenses may be issued for no more than a cumulative total of 10 days in a 
calendar year.  This is their fourth event this year.  The fee for a Special Event License is $25 
per day, payable to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.  The Town of 
Florence is holding a check totaling $25 to forward to the Arizona Department of Liquor 
License and Control upon Council approval.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Application  











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7c. 

MEETING DATE:  October 17, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:      Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Christopher A. Salas, Public  
Works Director/Town Engineer 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject: Creative Paving Solutions Contract for Main Street                         Meeting Date: October 17, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

 
SUBJECT:    Approval to award a contract to Creative Paving 
Solutions, LLC, for improvements on Main Street (Ruggles to 
12th Street) 

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Authorization to enter into a contract with Creative Paving Solutions, LLC,  for 
sandblasting and sealing improvement on Main Street, between Ruggles and 12th 
Street, in an amount not to exceed $40,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town has identified these streets as being main access ways for ingress and 
egress of pedestrians as well as the need to provide high traffic visibility; thus, it is in 
need of crosswalk and traffic for pedestrian safety and welfare.   

Previous intersection paving broke the monotony of the streets; highlighted crosswalks 
as an extension of the pedestrian realm and commercial locations, instituted crosswalk 
markings and the entire intersection.  Decorative paving though are not deemed a 
safety measure within a crosswalk, so transverse high visibility markings are required 
such as in the bands; thus providing a) streets and commercial areas important to the 
Town, b) entries of residential streets to higher volume streets, c) mid-block crossing via 
treatment, and d) contrasting with the primary materials. 

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) concludes that high visibility crosswalks has a 
positive effect on pedestrian and driver behavior thus due to low approach driver 
angles, use of transverse markings can increase the visibility of a crosswalk. 

Transverse markings used in addition to colored or textured pavement to legally 
establish a crosswalk location.  The previous transverse marking application offered 
minimal sealing, deteriorated upon sweeper action, and the antiquing only enhanced tire 
markings. 



Subject: Creative Paving Solutions Contract for Main Street                         Meeting Date: October 17, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

As a result an extended life of sealant, removal of some of the antiquing and a more 
contrasting color provides a more desirable feature for the crosswalks and intersections.  
The work operations consisting of sand blasting, and sealing will occur during evening 
hours and take approximately one week to complete the entire project. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The current fiscal year budget funds $40,000 for this project under Fund Account No. 
012-518-322.  Allocation would be $40,000 for Account No. 012-518-322. 
 
Staff advertised the project for competitive bids. The Town received no bids during the 
advertised time, but did receive a late bid.  Staff has chosen to award the late bid as a 
sole source, the bid is significantly lower than existing contracts with co-operative 
language.   
 
Sole Source is authorized under Section 4.4 of the Town of Florence Purchasing Code:  
 
Departments may procure and contract for supplies and services without using 
competitive procedures when it is clearly determined to be impractical to procure 
through the competitive bidding process.  The Department Head shall submit a Sole 
Source/Emergency Purchase Justification Form (Supplement 7.7) to the Town Manager 
for pre-approval.  If approved by Town Manager, the Department Head shall process 
the corresponding requisition. 
 
In the event a Sole Source Purchase exceeds $25,000, the Department Head shall 
obtain Town Council pre-approval, and, if approved, the purchase shall be processed by 
the Department in accordance with the Purchasing Policy. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorization to enter into a contract with Creative Paving Solutions, LLC,  for 
sandblasting and sealing improvement on Main Street, between Ruggles and 12th 
Street, in an amount not to exceed $40,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Sole Source Form 
 Quote 
 Contract 







1027 East Curry Road, Tempe AZ 85281 – T: 480-446-9000 F: 480-446-9001 ROC#155125 

 
Proposal 

Chris Salas             Job Name:             
Public Works Director/Town Engineer       Main Street Crosswalks 
Town of Florence           
Via e-mail to:   Christopher.salas@florenceaz.gov 
September 12, 2016 
 
Creative Paving Solutions proposes furnishing the materials and performing the labor necessary to complete the line 
items listed below: 
 
Option A 
We will sandblast and seal approximately 10,152 square feet of existing concrete. We will use Decocoat Polymer 
Systems DP-100 High Performance Tire Repellant Clear Sealer. We will do this for $2.73 per square foot or a total of 
$27,714.96 plus applicable sales taxes.  
We will, sandblast, prime, and coat approximately 1,100 square feet of concrete using Black Decocoat Polymer 
Systems DP-200 Heavy Duty High Traffic Coating. We will do this for $4.03 per square foot or a total of $4,433.00 plus 
applicable sales taxes.  
 
Total for option A is $32,147.96 plus applicable sales taxes. 
 
Option B 
We will sandblast, prime, coat, and seal approximately 10,152 of existing concrete. We will use Decocoat Polymer 
System DP-200 Heavy Duty High Traffic Coating; color TBD; and Decocoat Polymer systems DP-100 High 
Performance Tire Repellant Clear Sealer. We will do this for $5.00 per square foot or a total of $50,760.00 plus 
applicable sales taxes.  
 
We will, sandblast, prime, and coat approximately 1,100 square feet of concrete using Black Decocoat Polymer 
Systems DP-200 Heavy Duty High Traffic Coating. We will do this for $4.03 per square foot or a total of $4,433.00 plus 
applicable sales taxes.  
 
Total for option B is $55,193.00 plus applicable sales taxes.  
 
 
This proposal does NOT INCLUDE Davis Bacon/Prevailing Wages. 
 
 
Town of Florence will provide All Necessary Traffic Control. 
 
 
 



1027 East Curry Road, Tempe AZ 85281 – T: 480-446-9000 F: 480-446-9001 ROC#155125 

 Any additional square footage will be charged at the same rates as shown above per square foot plus 
applicable sales taxes 

 Prices are valid for thirty days from the date of this proposal. 
 Payment will be made as follows: 

o Payments will be due 30 days after completion 
o FINAL BILLING WILL BE BASED ON FIELD MEASUREMENTS OF ACTUAL WORK 

COMPLETED.  IF ACTUAL FIELD MEASUREMENTS ARE 10% OR GREATER LESS THAN 
INITIALLY PROPOSED AN INCREASE IN THE PRICE PER SQUARE FOOT MAY BE 
REQUIRED. 

 Creative Paving Solutions is not responsible for, and will not warranty any damage caused by anyone other 
than Creative Paving Solutions. 

 Creative Paving Solutions will not warranty any material that was not supplied by Creative Paving Solutions 
for this project. 

 Creative Paving Solutions is not responsible for below grade moisture. 
 Exclusions: 

o Surveying and/or engineering 
o Field layout 
o Paving 
o Bonds and permits 
o Cleaning prior to commencement of work 

 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7d. 

MEETING DATE: October 17, 2016  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject: Brunenkant Building Lease Agreement  Meeting Date: October 17, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

SUBJECT:  Brunenkant Building Lease Agreement with 
Weagant Law Offices, PLC   

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
A motion to approve the Lease Agreement between the Town of Florence and Weagant 
Law Offices, PLC, for the Brunenkant Building.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Weagant Law Offices, PLC, is a general service law firm operated and managed by 
Cody N. Weagant.  Mr. Weagant would like to lease the Brunenkant Building to be used 
as office space for his law firm. 
 
Mr. Weagant has practiced law in Pinal County for over eight years and concentrates 
his legal focus on criminal defense, family law and personal injury claims.  The Pinal 
County Superior Court in Florence is the main forum for the firm’s representation; 
however, Mr. Weagant practices in all Pinal County courts.  In special circumstances, 
cases are taken elsewhere around the State of Arizona in both traditional court settings 
and administrative hearings.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The term of the lease is from November 1, 2016 to October 31, 2017.  The monthly rent 
will be $500 and the tenant will pay for the cost of utilities each month as invoiced by the 
Town.  The tenant will maintain the landscaping, except for trees.  The Town will 
maintain the trees and provide pest control service for the building.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the lease with Weagant Law Offices, PLC. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Brunenkant Building Lease Agreement 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

291 NORTH BAILEY STREET PROPERTY LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
an Arizona municipal corporation 

 
AND 

 
WEAGANT LAW OFFICES, 

a professional limited liability company 
 
 
 

DATE:  November 1, 2016 
 



Page 2 of 19 

PROPERTY LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
This Commercial Lease Agreement ("Lease") is made and entered into on the __ day of 
October, 2016 by Town of Florence, Arizona, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called 
"Landlord" and Weagant Law Offices, a professional limited liability company, 
hereinafter called “Tenant". The Landlord and Tenant may be referred to in the Lease 
collectively as the “Parties” and each individual as “Party”.  
 
1. LEASED PREMISES 
 
For and in consideration of the rent to be paid and of the covenants and agreements of 
the Tenant as hereinafter set forth, Landlord does hereby lease to Tenant 1,782 square 
feet, the first floor and second floor excluding the basement, of the premises located at 
291 North Bailey Street, Florence, Arizona, also known as the Brunenkant Building, and 
hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”, or, the “Leased Premises”.  
 
2. TERM 
The Lease term shall begin on the 1st day of November, 2016, and end on the 31st 
day of October, 2017 (the “Initial Term”). Landlord shall use its best efforts to put 
Tenant in possession of the Leased Premises at the beginning of the Initial Term. If 
Landlord is unable to timely provide the Leased Premises for occupancy by Tenant, rent 
shall abate for the period of delay. Tenant agrees it shall make no other claim against 
Landlord for any such delay. 
 
3. EXTENSIONS  
 
The parties hereto may elect to extend the Initial Term upon such terms and conditions 
as may be agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties at the time of any such 
election, provided that Tenant gives notice of its request to extend the Initial Term no 
later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. If Tenant does not 
elect to extend the Initial Term in accordance with this paragraph, this Lease shall end 
on the 31st day of October, 2017 (the “Expiration Date”) and thereafter Tenant may 
only occupy the Premises on a month-to-month basis. Such month-to-month tenancy 
may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. Landlord’s 
acceptance of rent payments after the Expiration Date shall not constitute a renewal of 
this Lease Agreement.  
 
4. RENTS 
 
Rent shall be paid at the rate of five hundred dollars ($500.00) per month for the 
duration of the Lease. In addition to the rent, the Tenant is responsible for the 
commercial property lease transaction privilege tax and government property lease 
excise tax. Each monthly payment of rent due thereafter shall be payable on the first 
day of each calendar month for the balance of the Initial Term. Payment of rent shall be 
made to Landlord at Town of Florence, P.O. Box 2670, 775 North Main Street, 
Florence, Arizona 85132, or at such other place designated by written notice from 



Page 3 of 19 

Landlord. The rental payment amount for any partial calendar months included in the 
lease term shall be prorated on a daily basis. If rent is not received by the close of the 
5th business day then the late fee of $25.00 will be added to the Tenant’s account. 
 
5. SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 
The Tenant has deposited with the Landlord the sum of five hundred dollars ($500.00) 
as security for the full and faithful performance by the Tenant of all the terms of this 
lease required to be performed by the Tenant. Such sum shall be returned to the Tenant 
after the expiration of this lease, provided the Tenant has fully and faithfully carried out 
all of its terms. At the expiration of this Lease or such other time as Tenant may request 
the return of the Security Deposit, Landlord shall make an inspection of the Leased 
Premises and deduct from the Security Deposit such sums as are necessary to repair 
and refurbish the Leased Premises to the condition which existed prior to Tenant’s 
occupancy thereof. In the event of a bona fide sale of the property of which the Leased 
Premises are a part, the Landlord shall have the right to transfer the security deposit to 
the purchaser to be held under the terms of this lease, and the Landlord shall be 
released from all liability for the return of such security to the Tenant.  
 
6. PURPOSE 
 
A. Tenant shall use the Leased Premises for the purpose of conducting the 
business of a law office (the “Use”) and for no other purpose without Landlord’s express 
prior written consent. This Use must also be and remain consistent with Exhibit “A”. In 
the event Tenant desires to use the Leased Premises for a different business purpose 
not described above, Tenant shall first apply, in writing, for approval for such use to the 
Town of Florence. 
 
B. If Tenant fails to meet any of these requirements, then Landlord may terminate 
the lease after providing the Tenant no less than thirty (30) days written notice of 
Landlord’s intent to terminate the lease. If Tenant does not satisfy the above conditions 
or otherwise cure the deficiencies indicated in the notice within thirty (30) days, Landlord 
may terminate the lease as provided in Section 18 below. 
 
C. The Premises shall not be used in violation of this Lease, any zoning laws 
applicable to the Premises, or in violation of any federal, state or local laws or 
regulations. 
 
7. PROHIBITED USES 
 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, Tenant shall not use the Leased Premises for the 
purposes of storing, manufacturing or selling any explosives, flammables or other 
inherently dangerous substance, chemical, thing or device. All uses must conform to the 
Downtown Commercial (DC) zoning requirements, the Development Code, and the 
Landlord’s Property Lease Policy, as promulgated by Town from time to time.  
 



Page 4 of 19 

8. SUBLEASE AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. Tenant shall not sublet or assign this Lease without Landlord’s consent. To 
assign this Lease to a business with which Tenant may merge or consolidate, to any 
subsidiary of Tenant, to any corporation under common control with Tenant, or to a 
purchaser of substantially all of Tenant’s assets, Tenant must receive either written 
consent from Landlord (not to be unreasonably withheld) or enter into a new lease 
agreement reasonably satisfactory to both parties.   
 
Except as set forth above, neither Tenant nor any assignee may sublease all or any part 
of the Leased Premises, or assign this Lease in whole or in part without Landlord's 
written consent.  
 
9. REPAIRS 
 
A.     During the Lease term, Tenant shall make, at Tenant's expense, all necessary 
repairs and refurbishment of the Leased Premises. Repair and refurbishment shall 
include, but is not limited to, the repair and refurbishment of normal wear and tear to 
floors, walls, ceilings, and other parts of the Leased Premises caused by Tenant’s use 
and enjoyment of the Leased Premises, except for major mechanical systems or the 
roof, [(so long as damage thereto is not caused, in whole or in part, by the acts or 
omissions of Tenant, its invitees or those under Tenant’s direction and control) subject 
to the obligations of the parties as may otherwise be set forth in this Lease.] 
 
B.        Tenant has examined the Leased Premises and associated landscaping, 
improvements and parking lot, and Tenant hereby accepts the Leased Premises “as is” 
and “where is” and Tenant shall and does hereby waive all claims Tenant, now or 
hereafter, may have against Landlord arising out of or in any way attributable to the 
physical status or condition of the Leased Premises, landscaping, improvements, and 
parking lot. Tenant acknowledges and agrees that Landlord has not made any 
representations or warranty, express or implied, as to the suitability of Leased Premises 
for the Use. 
 
10. TENANT IMPROVEMENTS  
 
A. Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall have the right to remodel, redecorate, or 
make additions, improvements and replacements to the interior of the Leased Premises 
(excluding the exterior landscaping and the parking lot) from time to time as Tenant may 
deem desirable (the “Tenant Modifications”), provided the same are made in a 
workmanlike manner, lien free, in accordance with all codes, and utilizing good quality 
materials. Tenant must obtain the written consent of Landlord prior to undertaking any 
such Tenant Modifications. Tenant shall have the right to place and install personal 
property, trade fixtures, equipment and other temporary installations in and upon the 
Leased Premises, and fasten the same to the premises. All personal property, 
equipment, machinery, trade fixtures and temporary installations, whether acquired by 
Tenant at the commencement of the Lease term or placed or installed on the Leased 



Page 5 of 19 

Premises by Tenant thereafter, shall remain Tenant's property free and clear of any 
claim by Landlord. Tenant shall have the right to remove the same at any time during 
the term of this Lease but not after ten (10) days after the expiration thereof, provided 
that such removal does not cause any damage to the Premises. Any damage caused by 
the removal of Tenant’s personal property shall be repaired by Tenant at Tenant's 
expense. If Tenant fails to repair any such damage Landlord may repair the damage 
and deduct the costs thereof from Tenant’s security deposit, with Tenant remaining 
liable for the excess, if any, over the security deposit. At the expiration of this Lease, at 
Landlord’s direction, Tenant shall remove any such personal property from the Leased 
Premises at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, repairing any damage to the Leased 
Premises occasioned thereby. 
 
B. Tenant may have prepared plans and specifications for the construction of the 
Tenant Modifications, and, if so, such plans and specifications are attached hereto as 
Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by reference. Tenant shall obtain all certificates, 
permits, licenses and other authorizations of governmental bodies or authorities which 
are necessary to permit the construction of the improvements on the Leased Premises 
and shall keep the same in full force and effect at Tenant's cost.  
 
C. Tenant shall negotiate, let and supervise all contracts for the furnishing of 
services, labor, and materials for the construction of the Tenant Modifications on the 
Leased Premises at its sole cost and expense. All such contracts shall require the 
contracting party to guarantee performance and all workmanship and materials installed 
by it for a period of one year following the date of completion of construction.  Tenant 
shall cause all contracts to be fully and completely performed in a good and 
workmanlike manner, all to the effect that the improvements shall be fully and 
completely constructed and installed in accordance with good engineering and 
construction practice. Tenant shall include in any contract for the construction of Tenant 
Modifications a requirement that bonds in the full amount of the contract sum be 
furnished guaranteeing the faithful performance of the contract requirements and the 
payment of any and all subcontractors. 
 
D. During the course of the Tenant Modifications, Tenant shall, at its cost, keep in 
full force and effect a policy of builder's risk and liability insurance in a sum equal to 
three times the amount expended for construction of the improvements. All risk of loss 
or damage to the improvements during the course of construction shall be on Tenant 
with the proceeds from insurance thereon payable to Landlord.  
 
E. Nothing herein shall alter the intent of the parties that Tenant shall be fully and 
completely responsible for all aspects pertaining to the construction of the Tenant 
Modifications to Leased Premises and for the payment of all costs associated therewith. 
Landlord shall be under no duty to investigate or verify Tenant's compliance with the 
provisions contained herein. Moreover, neither Tenant nor any third party may construe 
the permission granted Tenant hereunder to create any responsibility on the part of the 
Landlord to pay for any improvements, alterations or repairs occasioned by the Tenant.  
 



Page 6 of 19 

11. UTILITIES 
 
Tenant shall pay the amount due for charges for water, sewer, gas, and electricity at the 
Leased Premises. Tenant shall pay the utilities invoice upon the due date for the 
monthly payment of this Lease or the first of the month, whichever comes first. Tenant 
shall be responsible for all of its own telecommunications and cable charges but Tenant 
may use the wireless internet already available on the premises. 
 
Tenant acknowledges that the Leased Premises are designed to provide standard office 
or retail use, electrical facilities and standard office lighting. Tenant shall not use any 
equipment or devices that utilize excessive electrical energy or which may, in Landlord's 
reasonable opinion, overload the wiring or interfere with electrical services to other 
tenants.  
 
12. LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AND PEST CONTROL 
 
Tenant shall be responsible for the regular landscape maintenance of the Premises 
except for the trees located on the Premises. Maintenance of the trees shall be the 
responsibility of the Landlord. Landlord shall maintain the Premises free from insects 
and other pests. Landlord shall, at its sole cost and expense, regularly control pests and 
insects within the Premises in the same manner as other Town-owned buildings 
including regular spraying. 
 
13. SIGNAGE 
 
A. Exterior Signs.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in 
conformity with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect and thereafter, to repair or 
replace, if it shall so elect, signs on any portion of the Leased Premises, providing that 
Tenant shall remove any such signs upon termination of this lease, and repair all 
damage occasioned thereby to the Leased Premises at its sole cost and expense. 
 
B. Interior Signs.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in 
conformity with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect, maintain, place and install its 
usual and customary signs and fixtures in the interior of the Leased Premises.  
 
14. ENTRY 
 
Landlord shall have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at reasonable hours to 
inspect the same, provided Landlord shall not thereby unreasonably interfere with 
Tenant's business on the Leased Premises. 
 
15.  PARKING 
 
During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall have the non-exclusive use in common with 
Landlord, of the non-reserved common automobile parking areas, driveways, and 
footways, subject to rules and regulations for the use thereof as prescribed from time to 



Page 7 of 19 

time by Landlord. Landlord reserves the right to designate parking areas within the 
Premises or in reasonable proximity thereto, for Tenant and Tenant's agents and 
employees. 
 
16. MECHANIC’S LIENS 
 
Tenant shall pay before delinquent all sums of money which, if unpaid, would entitle any 
person to a mechanic’s or material man’s or laborer’s lien against the Leased Premises, 
or on Lessee’s interest under this Lease. Tenant agrees that it will neither do any act, 
nor fail to do any act, which would result in the recordation of any lien against the 
Leased Premises. 
 
17.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
A. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
(i) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, agents, officers, 
officials, representatives, and employees from and against all tort claims, damages, 
losses and expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees, court costs, and the cost 
of appellate proceedings), relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted either 
wholly or in part from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the 
Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors in the performance of this 
Lease, and regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, loss or expenses are 
caused in part by Landlord.  
 
(ii) Tenant’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town of Florence, its 
Mayor and Council members, agents, officers, officials, representatives, and employees 
shall arise in connection with any tort claims, damages, losses or expenses that are 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or 
destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom, caused either wholly or 
in part by Tenant’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services in the 
performance of this Lease including any employee of the Tenant or any other person for 
whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services the Tenant may be legally 
liable, and regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, losses or expenses are 
caused in part by Landlord. 
 
(iii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein will in 
no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph. 
 
B. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
(i) The Tenant, at Tenant’s own expense, shall purchase and maintain the herein 
stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. 
Best, Inc. rating of “A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona 
with policies and forms satisfactory to the Landlord/Town of Florence. 



Page 8 of 19 

 
(ii) All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect during 
any term of this Lease; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the Town of 
Florence, constitute a material breach of this Lease. 
 
(iii) The Tenant’s insurance shall be primary insurance, and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the Town of Florence shall not contribute to it.  Any failure to 
comply with the claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an insurance 
policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect the Town 
of Florence. 
 
(iv) The insurance policies required by this Lease shall name the Town of Florence, 
its Mayor and Council members, agents, officers, officials, representatives, and 
employees as Additional Insured. 
 
C. REQUIRED COVERAGES 
 
(i) General Liability 
 
(a) Tenant shall, at Tenant’s expense, maintain a policy of comprehensive  public  
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and with a 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, 
broad form property damage, personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage 
including, but not limited to, the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of 
this Lease, which coverage will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc. 
Policy Form CG 000211093(October 2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, 
C, U. 
 
(b)  Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain 
a sunset provision or commutation clause, nor any provision, which would serve to limit 
third party action over claims. 
 
(c) The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at 
least as broad as the Insurance Service Office, Inc.’s, Additional Insured, Form B, 
CG2O101185 (October 2001 version). 
 
(ii) Property Insurance 
 
(a) Landlord shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or 
policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the Leased Premises, in the amount of 
the full replacement value thereof, providing protection against all perils included within 
the classification of fire, flood, extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief and 
special extended perils. 
 
(b) Tenant shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or 
policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the contents of the Leased premises. 



Page 9 of 19 

Tenant agrees that Landlord shall not be liable for injury to Tenant’s business or any 
loss of income therefrom, or for loss or damage to goods, wares, merchandise or other 
property in or on the Leased Premises owned or belonging to Tenant, Tenant’s 
employees, invitees, customers, or any other person in or about the Leased Premises; 
nor shall Landlord be liable for injury to the person of Tenant, Tenant’s employees, 
agents or contractors, whether such damage or injury to persons or property is caused 
by or results from fire, steam, electricity,  gas, water or rain, or from the breakage, 
leakage, obstruction, or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, 
air conditioning, or light fixtures or from any other cause; or whether the said damage or 
injury to person or property results from conditions arising upon the Leased Premises or 
from other sources or places, and regardless of whether the cause of such damage or 
injury or the means of repairing the same is inaccessible to Tenant. 
 
(iii) Certificates of Insurance 
 
(a) Prior to delivery of possession of the Leased Premises to Tenant, Tenant shall 
furnish the Landlord/Town of Florence with Certificates of Insurance, or formal 
endorsements as required by this Lease, issued by Tenant’s insurer(s), as evidence 
that policies providing the required coverage, conditions and limits required by this 
Lease are in full force and effect. 
 
(b) In the event any insurance policy (ies) required by this Lease is (are) written on a 
“claims made" basis, coverage shall extend for two years past the expiration of any term 
of this Lease as evidenced by annual Certificates of Insurance. 
 
(c) If a policy does expire during any term of this Lease, a renewal certificate must 
be sent to the Town of Florence fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date. 
 
18. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 
A. DEFAULTS 
 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a 
material default and breach of this Lease by Tenant: 
 
(i) The vacating or abandonment of the Leased Premises by Tenant; 
 
(ii) The failure by Tenant to make any payment of rent or any other payment 
required to be made by Tenant hereunder, as and when due; 
 
(iii) The failure by Tenant to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions, or 
provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Tenant, other than described in 
subsection (A) above, where such failure shall continue for a period of fifteen (15) days 
after written notice hereof from Landlord to Tenant; provided, however, that if the nature 
of Tenant’s default is such that more than fifteen (15) days are reasonably required for 
its cure, then Tenant shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant commenced such 



Page 10 of 19 

cure within said fifteen (15) day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to 
completion, such additional time to complete not to exceed thirty (30) additional days. 
 
(iv) The making by Tenant of any general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; 
the filing by or against Tenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged a bankrupt or a 
petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy (unless, 
in the case of a petition filed against Tenant, the same is dismissed within sixty (60) 
days); the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of 
Tenant’s assets, located at the Leased Premises, or, of Tenant’s interest in this Lease, 
where possession is not restored to Tenant within thirty (30) days; or, the attachment, 
execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Tenant’s assets located at the 
Leased Premises or of Tenant’s interest in this Lease where such seizure is not 
discharged within thirty (30) days. 
 
(v)  The filing or recordation of a lien against the Leased Premises due to any action 
or inaction of Tenant. 
 
B.  REMEDIES 
 
(i) In the event of any such material default or breach by Tenant, Landlord may at 
any time thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting Landlord in the 
exercise of any right or remedy which Landlord may have by reason of such default or 
breach: 
 
(ii) Terminate Tenants’ right to possession of the Leased Premises by any lawful 
means in which case this Lease shall terminate and Tenant shall immediately surrender 
possession of the Leased Premises to Landlord. In such event Landlord shall be entitled 
to recover from Tenant all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenant’s default, 
including but not limited to, the cost of recovering possession of the Premises; 
expenses of reletting, including necessary renovation and alteration of the Premises; 
reasonable attorney’s fees; and any real estate commission actually paid; the worth at 
the time of award by the court having jurisdiction thereof of the amount by which the 
unpaid rent for the balance of the term after the time of such award exceeds the amount 
of such rental loss for the same period that Tenant provides could be reasonably 
avoided. In the event Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises, Landlord shall have 
the option of 1) retaking possession of the Premises and recovering from Tenant the 
amount specified in this paragraph, or 2) proceeding under subsection (iv) below. 
 
(iii) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession in which case this Lease shall remain in 
effect whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises. In such event, 
Landlord shall be entitled to enforce all of Landlord’s rights and remedies under this 
Lease, including the right to recover the rent as it becomes due hereunder. 
 
(iv) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Landlord under the laws 
or judicial decisions of the State of Arizona, including the right to declare a landlord’s 
lien on Tenant’s personal property located on the Leased Premises. Where a landlord’s 



Page 11 of 19 

lien is declared by Landlord, Landlord may, without notice or demand to Tenant, 
terminate Tenant’s right to possession of the premises until Landlord has secured 
sufficient personal property or full payment of rent to satisfy the amount of rent owed. 
Should Landlord declare a landlord’s lien on the Leased Premises pursuant to this 
paragraph, the Lease shall not be considered terminated, and Landlord shall have a 
right to recover rent as it becomes due. 
 
C. DEFAULT BY LANDLORD 
 
(i) Landlord shall not be in default unless Landlord fails to perform obligations 
required of Landlord within a reasonable time, but in no event later than fifteen (15) 
days after written notice by Tenant to Landlord and to the holder of any first mortgage or 
deed of trust covering the Premises whose name and address shall have theretofore 
been furnished to Tenant in writing, specifying wherein Landlord has failed to perform 
such obligations; provided however, that if the nature of Landlord’s obligation is such 
that more than fifteen (15) days are required for performance, then Landlord shall not be 
in default if Landlord commences performance within such fifteen (15) day period and 
thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion. If Landlord does not perform, 
the holder of any first mortgage may perform in Landlord’s place and Tenant must 
accept such performance. 
 
D. HOLDOVER BY TENANT 
 
(i) If Lessee shall hold over after expiration of the Initial Term, or any extension of 
the Initial Term, such tenancy shall be from month-to-month only upon such terms, 
covenants, and conditions as set forth herein except for those relating to the term of the 
Lease. Any such month-to-month tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty 
(30) days notice to Tenant. However, nothing herein shall be construed as or deemed a 
waiver of any rights of Landlord to take such action in law or equity as Landlord may 
have under the provisions of this Lease or otherwise.  
 
E. BANKRUPTCY OF TENANT 
 
(i) If Tenant should make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or file a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or permit a 
receiver to be appointed to take possession of a substantial portion of the Tenant’s 
assets or of this leasehold, and such bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership 
proceedings not be dismissed within thirty days, then Landlord may, without notice or 
demand, terminate this Lease and forthwith re-enter and repossess the demised 
premises and remove all persons, and under no circumstances shall this Lease be 
assigned or transferred by operation of law. 
 
19. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION 
 
Subject to the Insurance provisions contained herein, if the Leased Premises or any 
part thereof or any appurtenance thereto is so damaged by fire, casualty or structural 



Page 12 of 19 

defects that the same cannot be used for Tenant's purposes, then Tenant shall have the 
right within ninety (90) days following damage to elect by notice to Landlord to terminate 
this Lease as of the date of such damage. In the event of minor damage to any part of 
the Leased Premises as determined in the sole discretion of Landlord, and if such 
damage does not render the Leased Premises unusable for Tenant's purposes, 
Landlord may, in its sole discretion, repair such damage at the cost of the Landlord. In 
making the repairs called for in this paragraph, Landlord shall not be liable for any 
delays resulting from strikes, governmental restrictions, inability to obtain necessary 
materials or labor or other matters which are beyond the reasonable control of Landlord. 
Tenant shall be relieved from paying rent and other charges during any portion of the 
Lease term that the Leased Premises are inoperable or unfit for occupancy, or use, in 
whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. Rentals and other charges paid in advance for 
any such periods shall be credited on the next ensuing payments, if any, but if no further 
payments are to be made, any such advance payments shall be refunded to Tenant 
subject to the provisions of this Lease which may permit Landlord to retain such 
payments. The provisions of this paragraph extend not only to the matters aforesaid, but 
also to any occurrence which is beyond Tenant's reasonable control and which renders 
the Leased Premises, or any appurtenance thereto, inoperable or unfit for occupancy or 
use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. 
 
20. TITLE 
 
A.   Subordination.  Tenant shall, upon the request of Landlord in writing, 
subordinate this Lease to the lien of any present or future institutional mortgage upon 
the Leased Premises irrespective of the time of execution or the time of recording of any 
such mortgage. Provided, however, that as a condition to such subordination, the holder 
of any such mortgage shall enter first into a written agreement with Tenant in form 
suitable for recording to the effect that: 
 
(i)   Foreclosure.  In the event of foreclosure or other action taken under the 
mortgage by the holder thereof, this Lease and the rights of Tenant hereunder shall not 
be disturbed but shall continue in full force and effect so long as Tenant shall not be in 
default hereunder; and  
 
(ii)  Such holder shall permit insurance proceeds and condemnation proceeds to be 
used for any restoration and repair required by the Damage and Insurance provisions of 
this Lease.  Tenant agrees that if the mortgagee or any person claiming under the 
mortgagee shall succeed to the interest of Landlord in this lease, Tenant will attorn to 
and recognize said mortgagee or person as its Landlord under the terms of this Lease, 
provided that said mortgagee or person for the period during which said mortgagee or 
person respectively shall be in possession of the Leased Premises and thereafter their 
respective successors in interest shall assume all of the obligations of Landlord 
hereunder. The word "mortgage", as used herein includes mortgages, deeds of trust or 
other similar instruments, and modifications, and extensions thereof. The term 
"institutional mortgage" means a mortgage securing a loan from a bank (commercial or 



Page 13 of 19 

savings) or trust company, insurance company or pension trust or any other lender 
institutional in nature and constituting a lien upon the Leased Premises.  
 
C.   Quiet Enjoyment.  Landlord covenants and agrees that upon Tenant paying the 
rent and observing and performing all of the terms, covenants and conditions on 
Tenant's part to be observed and performed hereunder, that Tenant may peaceably and 
quietly have, hold, occupy and enjoy the Leased Premises in accordance with the terms 
of this Lease without hindrance or molestation from Landlord or any persons lawfully 
claiming through Landlord. 
 
21. ATTORNEY’S FEES 
 
In the event of any legal action between Landlord and Tenant to enforce any of the 
provisions and/or rights hereunder, the unsuccessful party to such action agrees to pay 
to the other party all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees incurred 
in prosecuting or defending such action, and if judgment is recovered in such action or 
proceeding, such costs, expenses and attorney’s fees shall be included in and as a part 
of such judgment. 
 
22. NOTICES 
 
Any notice required to be given by or to either Landlord or Tenant pursuant to this 
Lease, shall be in writing and shall be forwarded by certified mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed as follows: 
 
For Landlord:      For Tenant: 
        
Town of Florence     Cody Weagant 
Town Manager     Weagant Law Offices, PLC 
P.O. Box 2670     P. O. Box 2345  
775 North Main Street     Florence, AZ 85132 
Florence, AZ 85132      
 
23.  ADDITIONAL ACTS.  
 
The Tenant agrees to execute promptly such other documents and to perform such 
other acts as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the purpose and intent of this 
Lease. 
 
24. GOVERNING LAW/JURISDICTION/VENUE.  
 
This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws 
of the State of Arizona, without reference to conflict of laws and principles. Any action 
brought to interpret, enforce, or construe any provision of this Lease shall be 
commenced and maintained in the Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for 
County of Pinal (or, as may be appropriate, in the Justice Courts of Pinal County, 



Page 14 of 19 

Arizona or in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona, if but only if, the 
Superior Court lacks or declines jurisdiction over such action). The Tenant irrevocably 
consents to jurisdiction and venue in such courts for such purposes and agrees not to 
seek transfer or removal of any action commenced in accordance with the terms of this 
paragraph. Should any dispute, misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms or 
provisions contained in this License, the matter shall first be referred to the Town, and 
Town shall determine the term or provision’s true intent and meaning. 
 
25. NO LIENS.  
 
Tenant shall not create or permit any liens to be placed of record against the Leased 
Premises. 
 
26. TIME OF ESSENCE.  
 
Time is of the essence of this Lease. The time within which an act must be 
accomplished, shall be calculated by excluding the first day and including the last day. 
However, if this Lease requires any act to be done or action to be taken on a date which 
is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, such act or action shall be deemed to have 
been validly done or taken if done or taken on the next succeeding day which is not a 
Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. 
 
27. INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE.  
 
All Exhibits to this Lease are fully incorporated herein as though set forth at length 
herein. 
 
28. SEVERABILITY.  
 
If any provision of this Lease is determined to be unenforceable based on a final, non-
appealable order of the Court, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless be kept in 
effect.  
 
29. NO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  
 
Tenant understands and agrees that pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 38-511, 
Landlord may terminate this Lease within one (1) year after execution of the Lease 
without penalty or further obligation if any person significantly involved in initiating, 
negotiating, securing, draft or creating the Lease on behalf of the Landlord is or 
becomes, at any time while the Lease or an extension of the Lease is in effect, an 
employee of or a consultant to any other party to this Lease with respect to the subject 
matter of the Lease. 
 
30. CONSTRUCTION.  
 



Page 15 of 19 

The terms and provisions of this Lease represent the results of negotiations between 
the Parties, each of which has been, or has had the opportunity to be, represented by 
counsel of its own choosing, and neither of which has acted under any duress or 
compulsion, whether legal, economic, or otherwise. Consequently, the terms and 
provisions of this Lease shall be incorporated and construed in accordance with their 
usual and customary meanings. The Parties each hereby waive the application of any 
rule of law which would otherwise be applicable in connection with the interpretation and 
construction of this Lease and that ambiguities or conflicting terms or provisions 
contained in this Lease shall be interpreted or construed against the Party whose 
attorney prepared or drafted the executed Lease or any earlier draft of the same or any 
of its exhibits. 
 
31. WAIVER.  
 
None of the provisions of this Lease shall be deemed to have been waived by any act or 
knowledge of any party or its agents or employees, but only by a specific written waiver 
signed by an authorized officer of such party and delivered to the other party. One or 
more waivers by either Party of any provisions, terms, conditions, or covenants of this 
Lease shall not be construed as a subsequent breach of same by the other Party. 
 
32. COUNTERPARTS.  
 
This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument, binding on all of the Parties. The Parties agree that this Lease may be 
transmitted between them via facsimile. The Parties intend that the faxed signatures 
constitute original signatures and that a faxed contract containing the signatures 
(original or faxed) of all the Parties is binding upon the Parties. 
 
33. LICENSES.   
 
Tenant shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and local licenses and permits 
required for the Use during the Use Period. 
 
34. NON-EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES.   
 
The rights and remedies of Landlord under this Lease are not exclusive. 
 
35. SURVIVAL.   
 
All warranties, representations and indemnification by Tenant shall survive the 
completion, expiration, cancellation, abandonment or termination of this Lease. 

 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY; SIGNATURES AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



Page 16 of 19 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as of the day 
and year first written above. 
 
LANDLORD: 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
            
 Tom J. Rankin, Mayor   Date 
 
    
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



Page 17 of 19 

TENANT: 
 
Weagant Law Offices PLC, a professional limited liability company 
 
By:       
 
Its:     Owner     
 
Date:         
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )  ss. 
County of Pinal   ) 
 
On this ____ day of    , 2016, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared __________________, and that as such, being authorized so to 
do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein contained. 
 
(Seal and Expiration Date) 
 
             
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
      



EXHIBIT A 
 

Business Summary 
 

Weagant Law Offices, PLC is a general service law firm operated and managed by 
Cody N. Weagant. Mr. Weagant has practiced law in Pinal County for over eight years 
and has concentrated his legal focus on criminal defense, family law and personal injury 
claims. The Pinal County Superior Court in Florence is the main forum for the firm’s 
representation; however, Mr. Weagant practices in all Pinal County courts and in special 
circumstances, cases are taken elsewhere around the State of Arizona in both 
traditional court settings and administrative hearings. Weagant Law Offices, PLC prides 
itself on providing high quality and efficient legal services with a focus on 
communication and the results gained for clients. 
 
Over the past eight years in Pinal County, Mr. Weagant sat on the Boys & Girls Clubs of 
the Casa Grande Valley Board of Directors for four years. For the last two years, Mr. 
Weagant has volunteered at the Florence Junior Parade Rodeo. Mr. Weagant’s prior 
law firm, for which he was a partner, Wallace, Volkmer & Weagant, PLLC regularly 
financially supported many non-profit organizations throughout Pinal Count, including, 
but not limited to: the Vista Grande Boys Basketball Team, the Casa Grande Union 
Softball Team, the Florence High School Baseball and Football Teams, the Special 
Olympics, Casa Grande Little League, the Boys & Girls Clubs of the Casa Grande 
Valley, Ride for the Warrior, Corey Lawton Cancer Foundation, and the Pinal 40. Mr. 
Weagant’s oldest daughter attends Florence K-8 School. 



Page 19 of 19 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Tenant Modifications 
 

[PLACEHOLDER FOR ALL PERMANENT TENANT MODIFICATIONS] 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7e. 

MEETING DATE: October 17, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Proclamation declaring October 2016 as National 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: National Community Planning Month Proclamation                                             Meeting Date:  October 17, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

Community Planning Month 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Proclaim October 2016 as National Community Planning Month in the Town of Florence and 
highlight the contributions, sound planning, and plan implementation make to the resilience of 
our communities. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The celebration of National Community Planning Month gives us the opportunity to recognize 
those who have contributed their time and expertise to improving the sustainability and 
resilience of their communities through planning activities. Community planning helps manage 
change in a way that provides better choices for how people work and live.  
 
Community planning provides an opportunity for all residents to be meaningfully involved in 
making choices that determine the future and preparedness of their community. The full 
benefits of planning require the whole community to understand, support and demand 
excellence in planning and plan implementation.   
 
The month of October is designated as National Community Planning Month throughout the 
United States of America and its territories.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Proclaim October 2016 as National Community Planning Month. 

ATTACHMENT: 
  
National Community Planning Month Proclamation 

 



 

 

 
NATIONAL COMMUNITY PLANNING MONTH 

  
WHEREAS, change is constant and affects all cities, towns, suburbs, counties, 

boroughs, townships, rural areas, and other places; and   
  

WHEREAS, community planning and plans can help manage this change in a way 
that provides better choices for how people work and live.  Community planning provides 
an opportunity for all residents to be meaningfully involved in making choices that 
determine the future of their community; and     
  

WHEREAS, the full benefits of planning requires public officials and citizens who 
understand, support, and demand excellence in planning and plan implementation; and   
  

WHEREAS, the month of October is designated as National Community Planning 
Month throughout the United States of America and its territories, and   
  

WHEREAS, The American Planning Association and its professional institute, the 
American Institute of Certified Planners, endorse National Community Planning Month as 
an opportunity to highlight the contributions sound planning and plan implementation make 
to the quality of our settlements and environment; and  
    

WHEREAS, the celebration of National Community Planning Month gives us the 
opportunity to publicly recognize the participation and dedication of the members of Boards 
and Commissions and other citizen planners who have contributed their time and expertise 
to the improvement of the Town of Florence; and   
  

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence recognizes the many valuable contributions 
made by professional community and regional planners of the Town of Florence and 
extend our heartfelt thanks for the continued commitment to public service by these 
professionals.   
  

NOW, THEREFORE, I Tom J. Rankin, the Mayor of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
do proclaim the month of October 2016 as “National Community Planning Month” in the 
Town of Florence in conjunction with the celebration of National Community Planning 
Month.  

 
In witness thereof, I hereby set my hand and affix the Official Seal of the Town of 

Florence, Arizona, this 17rd day of October 2016.      
___________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: 
                                      
____________________________                               
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk               



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING OF THE FLORENCE 
TOWN COUNCIL HELD ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2016, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, 
FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall. 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 1 of 12 

 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
 PRESENTATION 
 
Presentation of the Town Manager Work Plan 
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, provided a presentation, in which he outlined the 
following: 
- Purpose 

 The purpose of the office of the Town Manager is to  provide plans, controls, 
direction, and coordination to the activities and functions of all Town 
departments, resources, personnel, capital, and projects on behalf of the Town 
Council, employees, and the citizens of Florence so they can be informed, be 
provided, and receive needed services and enjoy a safe and productive place to 
live, work, and play.  

- Why? 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 2 of 12 

 In accordance with Section 11 of his contract, he is required to prepare and 
present to Council, a performance plan that specifies benchmark areas of 
accomplishment. 

 It is the right thing to do 
- Major Accomplishments within six months 

 Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Budget Target ($1.2 Million) 
 Floodplain Management Regulation Update 
 2016 Legislative Agenda 
 2016 Pavement Preservation Program 
 2016 Expenditure Limitation Special Election 
 Approval of Proposition 411 – Expenditure Limitation  
 The Town now has Home Rule for a four year period. 

 2016 Employee Benefits (cost reduction) 
 2016 Community Facilities District (CFD) Bond Sales (General Obligation and 

Special) 
 Public Works Director Recruitment 
 Balanced Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Final Budget 

- Three year plan 
 Eight major issues identified through discussions 
 Economic Development 
 Water and Wastewater Infrastructure 
 Roads and Streets 
 Historic Preservation 
 Relationships (internal and external) 
 Public Safety 
 Customer Service 
 Quality of Life 

- Economic Development 
 Goals    Objectives 

Quality jobs   Business retention 
     Business expansion 
     Recruit quality employers 
     Job diversification 

Retail    Additional retail opportunities 
Downtown   Quality events      

     Vibrant/attractive/functional     
    Effective marketing 
 

- Water/Wastewater 
 Goals    Objectives 
 Water Supply  Future sources 
     Maintenance 
     Quality 
     Reclamation 
 Infrastructure   Maintenance 
     Capital Improvements 
  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 3 of 12 

  Sewer Treatment  Upgrades 
     Expansion 

- Roads and Streets 
 Goals    Objectives 
 Maintenance ROW   Permitting 

Lifecycle program (providing the maintenance 
necessary to reduce the expenditures for all out 
reconstruction)  

     Acquire additional funding 
Improve drainage (Damage around Town is because 
they do not drain properly.)  

Enhancement Reconstruction of existing roads (Diversion Dam is 
almost complete.) 

     Streetscape Project in the downtown area 
Multimodal improvements (specifically the need of 
cyclist and the need to expand the system) 

 Expansion   Connectivity  
     Mobility 
     North/South Corridor 

- Historic Preservation 
 Toured Tucson and spoke with State experts regarding infill, historic 

preservation, historic properties and historic districts. 
 Training: Historic District Advisory Commissioners attended Historic Preservation 

Conference. 
 Goals    Objectives 
 Infill    Address vacant properties 
     Encourage investment in the downtown 
     Innovative programs 
 New Projects   Infill/Territory Square 
     Visual enhancement to the downtown 

Supporting infrastructure (CDBG Grant Application for 
fire protection in the downtown)  

 Codes/Plans   General Plan Update 
     Code enforcement 
     Simplify/streamline processes  

- Relationships 
 Goals    Objectives 
 Intergovernmental  Pinal County 
     Coolidge 

San Carlos (San Carlos Irrigation Drainage District, 
San Carlos Indian Power) 
Florence Unified School District/Central Arizona 
College 

 Employers   Local Businesses 
     Prisons/supporting industries 

 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 4 of 12 

State/Regional/Federal  CAG/MAG  
 State agencies (ADOT, ADEQ, DOR, ACC, etc.) 
 State and Federal Elected Officials 

 Internal   Council/Manager 
     Manager/ Employee 
     Employee/Customer 

- Public Safety 
 Goals    Objectives 
 Police    Maintain optimum levels 
     Safest City in Arizona  
 Fire    Maintain optimum levels 

Enhance ISO rating (Rating is utilized to determine 
the cost of insurance on your property.) 

     Education/assistance 
Facilities Provide needed infrastructure for public safety 

(Equipment, technology, vehicles) 
- Customer Service 

 Goals    Objectives 
Accountability  Provide fast, fair, efficient, and friendly customer 

service to all customers 
 Transparency  Meaningful public involvement (Strategic Planning) 
     Media relationships 
     Open and honest information 

 Training Educate, empower, and enable employees to better 
serve the customer 

- Quality of Life 
 Goals    Objectives 
 Cultural   Broaden arts, culture, events 

 Social Services Facilitate needed services (such as durable medical 
equipment program) 

 Community Facilities Provide adequate facilities 
 Recreation   Provide opportunities 
 Library   Expand services 

 Education Innovative programs/Youth (Teen Leadership 
Program) 

     Partnerships 
 Community Needs  Jobs, shopping, programs 

- Current Priorities 
 Sustainable financial future for Florence 
 Council Strategic Plan 
 Infrastructure financing to upgrade infrastructure (WIFA, USDA, FHWA, etc.) 
 Economic development (jobs/housing) 
 Preparing for new residential development 
 Water system improvements 
 Wastewater improvements 
 Street maintenance/improvements 
 Outstanding legal issues 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 5 of 12 

CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Proclamation of the Mayor declaring September 2016 as 

Grandfamily/Kinship Care Month.  
 

b. Approval of the Coolidge-Florence Elk’s Lodge application for their Special 
Event Liquor License application to the Arizona Department of Liquor 
Licenses and Control for their Demolition Derby event to be held on 
October 1, 2016.   

 
c. Resolution No. 1597-16:    

 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1597-16 by 
title only.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
DECLARING AS A PUBLIC RECORD A CERTAIN DOCUMENT FILED WITH THE 
TOWN CLERK AND ENTITLED “TERRITORY SQUARE ZONING DISTRICT” 
BOOK DATED JULY, 27 2016.  

 
d. Approval to purchase nine Motorola APX7000 Digital Portable Radios and 

associated equipment, in an amount not to exceed $65,987.15.   
 

e. Approval to purchase one 2016 Mini Excavator 303E for the Public Works 
Department, to Empire Machinery, in an amount not to exceed $39,000.   

 
f. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending July 31, 2016, in the 

amount of $3,099,133.72.   
 

On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to approve the consent agenda, as written, with the exception of Item d. 
 
d. Approval to purchase nine Motorola APX7000 Digital Portable Radios and 

associated equipment, in an amount not to exceed $65,987.15.  
 
Councilmember Anderson asked for clarification regarding the Police Department not 
being able to purchase the third dispatch terminal due to unanticipated installation and 
on-going service costs.  
 
Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analysist, stated that the grant was originally 
awarded to fund the third 9-1-1 dispatch console.  When the procurement process 
started with that project, the Police Department found that there were cost overruns that 
were unanticipated with regards to installation and telecommunication lines as well as 
ongoing service.  The amount, which would exceed what the grant covered, is 
approximately $20,000 per year of ongoing costs.  Knowing that there is a need to 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 6 of 12 

replace the existing radios, staff requested that the Gila River Indian Community change 
the scope of the project to purchase radios instead of the dispatch console.  
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired how critical is the console to the department. 
 
Mr. Dan Hughes, Police Chief, stated that the hope is that the State will assist with 
funding of the console next year.  If the Town were to purchase the console and have it 
installed, the Town will incur a cost of approximately $2,000 per month; however, if the 
State were to provide the console, the State would absorb the monthly cost.  He stated 
that they are fine with the equipment they currently have; however, they were looking to 
get a head of the curb.  They will use the area as a training area but will not be able to 
take calls from that location.      
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to approve the purchase of nine Motorola APX7000 Digital Portable Radios and 
associated equipment, in an amount not to exceed $65,987.15. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Ordinance No. 649-16:  
 
Ms. Garcia read Ordinance No. 649-16 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, TO 
AMEND THE TERRITORY SQUARE ZONING BOOK PER SECTION 150.070 
TERRITORY SQUARE (TS)  CONTAINED WITHIN THE LAND USAGE SECTION OF 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES (CASE PZ 16-51 ORD).   
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 649-16. 
 
Resolution No. 1596-16:  
 
Ms. Garcia read Resolution No. 1596-16 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE TERRITORY SQUARE EXPANSION MINOR GENERAL PLAN 
AMENDMENT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
BUTTE AVENUE AND PLANT ROAD (CASE PZ 16-49 GPA).   
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried 
to adopt Resolution No. 1596-16. 
 
Ordinance No. 652-16:   
 
Ms. Garcia read Ordinance No. 652-16 by title only.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 7 of 12 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE TERRITORY SQUARE ZONE CHANGE ON APPROXIMATELY 40 
ACRES LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF BUTTE AVENUE AND 
PLANT ROAD (PZ 16-50 ZC).  
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 652-16. 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Billingsley introduced Jamie White, GIS Coordinator, who has worked on the CIP 
Tool.  He stated that they are launching the beta version of the CIP Tool on the website.   

Mr. Jamie White, GIS Coordinator, provided a brief tutorial on the CIP Tool and how it 
works.  He performed a live search for the Council to show how one would navigate 
through the tool.   

Mr. Billingsley stated that the project information is accessible through the tool.  Some 
of the information includes: project name, fiscal year of project, funding, status, and 
contractor.  The hope is to provide a project schedule for each of the projects in the 
near future.  He stated that the Public Works Department has Excel schedules for the 
projects that indicate when the project is slated to go out for bid.   

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Florence Police Department will soon be hosting the 
second Citizens Academy.  It will be held on Wednesday evenings and is scheduled to 
begin in early October.  He asked those who are interested in learning more about 
Florence and what the police officers do to please sign up.  He encouraged the public to 
take part in the next academy. 

Mr. Billingsley read into the record a news release that was provided by the 
Government Finance Officers’ Association: 

“The Certificate of Achievement for Excellence and Financial Reporting has been 
awarded to the Town of Florence by the Governor’s Finance Officers’ Association of the 
United States and Canada (GFOA ) for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR).  The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of 
governmental accounting and financial reporting and its attainment represents the 
significant accomplishment by a government and its management.  An award of 
financial reporting achievement has been awarded to the individuals or department or 
agency designated by the government as the primarily responsible for preparing an 
award winning CAFR.  This has been presented to the Finance Department of the Town 
of Florence.  The CAFR has been judged by an impartial panel to meet the needs and 
standards of the program including and demonstrating a constructive spirit of full 
disclosure to clearly communicate the financial story and motivate potential users and 
user groups to read the CAFR.  The GFOA is a non-profit professional organization 
serving approximately 7,500 government finance professionals with offices in Chicago 
and Washington D. C.”   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 8 of 12 

Mr. Billingsley congratulated the Council, Budget Committee and Finance Department 
on the achievement. 

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has been awarded a $1,500 grant for smoke 
detectors for the fire safety program that they are hoping to implement this fall.   

Mr. David Strayer, Fire Chief, stated that they will be able to purchase 100 smoke 
detectors and will target the elderly.  They will start in the Caliente area and will go door-
to-door to ensure that the residents have working smoke detectors.  He stated that the 
solar plant that is in near proximity to Fire Station 2 provided the grant.   

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town appreciates their contribution.  

Mr. Billingsley read a letter from FEMA and the National Emergency Training Center 
into the record: 

“Dear Chief Strayer,  

Congratulations, it is my pleasure to inform you of your acceptance into the U. S. Fire 
Administration’s National Fire Academy (NFA) Fire Executive Officer Program to 
commence within Fiscal Year 2017, from October 1, 2016 thru September 30, 2017.   
This year the selection process was particularly difficult for the NFA.  There were many 
qualified applicants and a limited number of EFOP slots.  You will be assigned to one of 
our executive development course offerings which will be held at the National 
Emergency Training Center in Emmitsburg, Maryland.” 

Chief Strayer stated the program is for four years and there is a research paper that is 
required after you attend for two weeks and then after each attendance thereafter.  He 
stated that it is a very difficult program to get into and he was pleased that he was 
selected.  He is looking forward to applying the knowledge that he gains from this 
training. 

Mayor Rankin inquired if ADOT has been advised of the completion of Diversion Dam 
Road so they can move forward with the traffic signal. 

Mr. Billingsley stated that the project is 50% complete.  The Town’s portion which 
included utility relocation, paving, concrete work, and providing utilities and conduit for 
ADOT is complete.  ADOT needs to install the signal, per the agreement.  ADOT has 
been contacted and has reviewed the project throughout the process.  He stated that 
ADOT will move forward as funding becomes available.  ADOT has not provided a time 
frame.   

DEPARTMENT REPORTS   
Community Development 
Courts 
Fire 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 9 of 12 

Public Works 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired about Community Development’s Report where it states 
that staff continues to respond to inquiries regarding the purchase of land within Anthem 
or Anthem at Merrill Ranch communities.  It is an ongoing item, and specifies as such; 
however, she asked for an update. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that there have been 
continuous inquiries (due diligence) regarding the purchase of the undeveloped portions 
of Anthem or going into the Merrill Ranch development.  With regards to Anthem, it is 
primarily on the west side of Hunt Highway.  There is also interest in the land swap area 
where Pulte is building the new subdivision with Merrill Ranch.  There are two entities 
that are looking at a deal; however, nothing has been consummated.  Staff has been 
providing responses to impact fees, CFDs, zoning, and zoning amendments.    
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she has received questions about the Streetscape 
Project from various business owners and that the businesses have been affected by 
the disruption due to the project.   
 
Mr. Jess Knudson, Assistant Town Manager, stated that he spoke with one of the 
business owners on Main Street.  One concern is the holes where the old streetlights 
were removed as well as the holes that are being dug for the new streetlights.  Those 
areas have been designated as a hazard for pedestrians and barricades with lights 
have been installed to alert pedestrians.  The concerns addressed to him were the 
aesthetics of the street and confusion from customers where they think that there is no 
parking in that area.  Discussions include installing signage in the project area indicating 
that the downtown is open for business and that parking is not restricted where you see 
the barricades.  He stated that they opted not to do grates because someone could trip 
if there were to be a slight variance in height, and that could cause a liability for the 
Town.   
 
Mr. Knudson stated that the project should be completed in a 12 week time period, 
which would have completion in early December.  He stated that he received an email 
stating that the project will be completed in early November; however, this is tentative.      
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired if the Town knew that the project would take approximately 
three months and why did they dig so early into the project before the lights were ready 
to be installed.   
 
Mr. Knudson stated that the lights were ordered after the Town had conversations with 
the contractor to ensure that the lights ordered were the approved lights. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired if there is any way to speed up the process. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that they are doing their best.  He stated that no one wants to see 
the construction delayed.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 10 of 12 

The Department Reports were received and filed.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
There were no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Hawkins thanked all the residents who voted in favor of the Home Rule 
as well as those who came to the informational sessions on Home Rule.  He stated that 
legislation needs to look at the law and perhaps do away with it.  The law made sense 
at the time it was adopted; however, there are not any communities that can operate 
without having a home rule.  It is an election that is needless for the taxpayers and 
everyone should let their legislators know that this particular law needs to be revisited.  
He thanked everyone who voted for him, he appreciates the votes.   
 
Councilmember Wall agreed with Councilmember Hawkins’ comments.  She thanked 
the Town and Council for allowing her to attend the League of Arizona Cities and Towns 
Conference.  She attended sessions on economic development as well as open 
meeting law and other pertinent topics.  She came back with a wealth of information and 
hopes to share and benefit from this for the next four years that she will be serving.   
 
Councilmember Wall thanked everyone for voting in support of Home Rule and for 
those who voted.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge, Councilmember Guilin, and Councilmember Anderson 
echoed Councilmember Hawkins and Councilmember Wall’s comments.  
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he spoke previously about the CAP allocations.  
The Department of the Interior has released a forecast for 2017 on Lake Mead and that 
it will be at 1,078 feet which is three feet above the critical mass.  They are forecasting 
that there will not be a water shortage at Lake Mead.  
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that it is with a heavy heart that she announced that Florence 
lost a very fond educator as well as an administrator.  She asked for a moment of 
silence.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the August 30, 2016 election was very important to Florence 
regarding the passage of Home Rule.   He stated that it is his opinion that Florence’s 
citizens have confidence in the Town to manage the revenues that the Town is 
receiving.  He stated that just because the Town now has the ability to spend the 
revenue that it receives does not mean that there will be frivolous spending.  He stated 
that the Town will continue to build their reserve funds.  The Town is considering asking 
for a permanent home rule in the future.   
 
Mayor Rankin expressed his condolences to the family of Mr. John Allee.  He stated 
that Mr. Allee was a principal at Florence K-8 and Walker Butte.  He ran on this 
election’s ballot for the Florence Unified School District School Board and he received 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 11 of 12 

enough votes to be on the November ballot.  The passing of Mr. Allee leaves a deep 
void in the community. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the General Election will be held November 8, 2016.  He 
congratulated Gem Cox for running a good race and to Vice-Mayor Walter for moving 
forward to the run-off along with him in the General Election.  He congratulated those 
who were elected to the Council.  He stated that there was less than a 50% voter 
turnout for the Primary Election and would like to see the turn out for the General 
Election exceed 50% of the voters.  
  
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for the purpose of 
discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public body 
and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4), and 
(A)(7) and to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or 
attorneys regarding: 
 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to pending litigation in Maricopa 
County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV 2015-000325. 
 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality proceedings. 
 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to contracts and pending or 
contemplated litigation involving land use in the Town.   
 
Town’s attorneys for legal advice on a pending and threated claim filed by Johnson 
Utilities.  
 
Town’s attorney for Legal advice on condemnation case file by Southwest 
Environmental Utilities LLC. Case No. CV2 01601374. 
 
Town’s attorney for legal advice on procurement procedures associated with the 
Division Dam Road Project. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adjourn  the meeting at 8:16 pm.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 6, 2016 
Page 12 of 12 

 
 

________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on September 6, 2016, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 

 
 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2016, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL:    
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall. 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 9 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence in remembrance of past-Governor Rose 
Mofford. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. Doug Stinson, President, Pinal County Mounted Posse, stated that they have 
started a jackpot barrel race and gymkhana for the children at the rodeo grounds on the 
third Saturday of each month.  Even though they did not publicize their first event, they 
had a great turnout.  He said that they are also working with the Town to get the water 
system upgraded for water storage at the arena.  One local business made a very 
generous donation and they have all the necessary equipment.  The Posse is working 
out the details with the Town.   
 
Mr. Stinson stated that they have begun to reach out for sponsorship for Jr. Parada as 
well as selling ads for the program.  He stated that the fees range from $25 to $500.   
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that Mr. Jerry Ravert, Florence Resident, 
wrote a letter to the Council, and it was published in the local newspaper.  The letter has 
been provided to Council for their review.      
 
PRESENTATION  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 9 

Presentation of Vallarie Woolridge’s Twelve Year Service Award received from the 
League of Arizona Cities and Towns. 
 
Mayor Rankin presented Councilmember Woolridge with her Twelve Year Service 
Award from the League of Arizona Cities and Towns for her service on the Town 
Council.  He recognized all of the various boards that Councilmember Woolridge has 
served on during her tenure on the Town Council.  He stated that Councilmember 
Woolridge also serves on the Coolidge Transportation Advisory Committee.  He 
thanked her for her time and dedication to the Town of Florence.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge thanked the voters who continually vote her into office.  She 
stated that she really enjoys serving the residents and helping Florence to be 
progressive.  She stated that Florence is trying to be current and progressive and she 
enjoys being a part of that.       

 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Proclamation declaring October 2016 as Light Town Hall Purple for Domestic 

Violence Awareness Month.  
 
b. Approval of the Florence Football Booster Club’s Special Event Liquor 

License application to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control, for their Cow Pie Bingo event to be held at Heritage Park, on 
October 21, 2016.  
 

c. Approval of the San Tan United Sports Academy’s Special Event Liquor 
License application to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control, for the Anthem Celebrates the Arts event, at Anthem at Merrill 
Ranch Community Park, on November 12, 2016.   

 
d. Appoint Tom L. Smith to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, with a term to 

expire December 31, 2017. 
 

e. Approval to enter into a Lease Agreement with Florence Mosaic Church of 
the Nazarene, owner of the Florence Fudge Company., for Suite 101, in the 
Silver King Market Place.  
 

f. Approval to enter into a Lease Agreement with Bucks 4 Style, LLC, for 
Suite 102, in the Silver King Market Place. 
 

g. Approval to enter into Lease Agreement with Seconds Please… on Main, 
LLC, for Suite 202, in the Silver King Market Place. 

 
h. Approval of the August 1, August 15, and August 22, 2016 Council minutes. 
 
i. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2016 
Page 3 of 9 

 
i. June 9, and July 14, 2016 Arts and Culture Commission minutes. 

ii. June 29, 2016 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes. 
iii. June 15, 2016 Library Advisory Board minutes. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to approve the consent agenda, as written, with the exception of Item 7i ii.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that the June 29, 2016 Historic District Advisory 
Commission (HDAC) minutes do not reflect the reason that the plaque was erected at 
the American Legion facility.  She stated that she is disappointed that the HDAC 
minutes do not reflect the reason for the plaque.  The plaque was erected to recognize 
that the building was used as a school for black children years ago.  The HDAC minutes 
should reflect the reasons for the plaque.  It is irrelevant that the Town did not contribute 
money for the plaque because this is part of the Town’s history.  She stated that by only 
stating that a plaque was erected at the American Legion, the Town is failing to 
acknowledge a part of the community’s history.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that by ignoring this part of our history, we continue to 
contribute the climate that exists in our country.  Segregation exists in more areas than 
in schools, and until we acknowledge that racism existed and still exists today, things 
will not get better.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she is offended that the historical information 
surrounding the erection of the plaque was not included in the HDAC minutes.  She 
stated that by omitting the history it is disrespectful to our black community members 
and especially the children that had to attend school at that building.  She stated that 
people need to look at themselves and have a serious conversation about racism.  She 
would like the Town to work with the Florence Unified School District and the American 
Legion to have some type of public acknowledgment of the plaque and why it was 
placed at that building.  She stated that by failing to talk about the history, we tend to 
repeat it and there are some things that need to remain history and not be repeated.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she is appreciative that the American Legion 
chose a place to hang that plaque; however, the Town failed to publically acknowledge 
the plaque.   
 

i. June 29, 2016 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried 
to approve the June 29, 2016 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a Lease Agreement with Brittany 
Padilla, owner of W Rose Skin Spa, for Suite 201, in the Silver King Market Place.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2016 
Page 4 of 9 

Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated that Suite 201 became available in 
September 2016.  Ms. Brittany Padilla, owner of W Rose Spa, approached the Town a 
number of months ago interested in leasing space in the Silver King Market Place once 
it became available.  Staff has worked with her for approximately four months and 
helped her develop her business plan.  Her business was previously located on Butte 
Avenue.  She stated that W Rose Spa is a place where aesthetician services are 
offered.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that Ms. Padilla is interested in moving into the Silver King Market 
Place because of the foot traffic.  Staff believes the business is a good fit for the 
location.  W Rose Spa has been in business for one and a half years and she is hoping 
to grow her operation.  Staff believes that Suite 201 will afford the opportunity to grow 
her business there.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to enter into a Lease Agreement with Brittany Padilla, owner of W Rose Skin 
Spa, for Suite 201, in the Silver King Market Place 
 
Resolution No. 1599-16:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1599-16 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
DECLARING AND ADOPTING THE RESULTS OF THE PRIMARY ELECTION, HELD 
ON AUGUST 30, 2016.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the election was held 
on August 30, 2016.  She stated that the total number of registered voters were 4,930.  
The number of ballots cast in the Primary Election was 2037.  The number of votes cast 
through mail ballot were 1,581, which equated to 77% of the total ballots cast.    

 
The votes cast for the candidates for Mayor were as follows: 

 
Names     Votes 
Cox, Gem        483 
Rankin, Tom J.       617 
Walter, Tara        887 
 

Ms. Garcia stated that Tom J. Rankin and Tara Walter will move forward to the General 
Election, which will be held on November 8, 2016. 
 
Votes cast for the candidates for councilmember are as follows: 
 

Cox, Strom        776 
Duron Michelle       806 
Hawkins, Bill        975 
Larsen Kristen       964 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2016 
Page 5 of 9 

Wall, Karen J.    1,120 
 

Ms. Garcia stated that all candidates received enough votes to be able to be elected in 
the primary election.  Underneath the State Statutes, Rules associated with running 
elections, the top three members did get elected.  The new councilmembers that will be 
seated in December 2016 are Bill Hawkins, Kristen Larsen, and Karen J. Wall. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that Proposition 411 was also on the ballot.  She stated that those 
voting in favor of Proposition were 1,320, and those against were 567.  Proposition 411 
passed and the Town of Florence once again has Home Rule for the next four years 
starting the next fiscal  year.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated the Town received a 41.32% voter turnout for the 2016 Primary 
election.  Compared to the last mayoral election, the voter turnout is down from 52%. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated the registered voters increased by approximately 800 voters.   
 
Mayor Rankin thanked the voters for passing Proposition 411.  It shows the Council that 
the voters have trust in the Council and how they are operating.  He would like all voters 
to vote in the General Election and would like to see the turnout exceed 50%.    
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1599-16. 

 
Resolution No. 1600-16:  
 
Ms. Garcia read Resolution No. 1600-16 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO ESTABLISH A STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT TO PURCHASE ENERGY FOR LIGHTING THE PUBLIC STREETS AND 
PARKS IN THE AREA WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, ARIZONA, DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT A, ATTACHED HERETO; 
DECLARING SUCH IMPROVEMENTS TO BE OF MORE THAN LOCAL OR 
ORDINARY PUBLIC BENEFIT AND THAT THE EXPENSES THEREOF BE PAID 
FOR BY THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AD VALOREM TAXES UPON THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF ALL REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY IN A 
CERTAIN DISTRICT TO BE KNOWN AS “TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
MERRILL RANCH STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1”; AND 
ORDERING THAT SUCH IMPROVEMENTS BE PROVIDED FOR UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 48-572, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff has asked that this item be tabled to the next Council 
Meeting.   
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
table Resolution No. 1600-16. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2016 
Page 6 of 9 

 
Ratification of a contract for the Diversion Dam Road Project with Willdan, in an 
amount not to exceed $172,078.50.  
 
On October 25, 2012, staff entered into a Contract Task Order with Willdan for 
engineering work on Diversion Dam Road.  Recently, the Town had additional work that 
needed to be completed and staff was considering a Change Order to be presented to 
Council on that contract.  She stated that staff did its due diligence to be able to 
determine whether or not the amount had exceeded the value of the original 
authorization levels.  Staff found that Willdan did not, at that time, have an approved 
contract by Council.  The contract was approved by a department head.  Staff has 
ensured that the contract with the Task Orders that need to be completed are packaged 
for Council to approve in the correct way, pursuant to Arizona State Statutes and Town 
Rules and Regulations.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the contract has been reviewed by Willdan, and as of 4:45 pm 
today, Willdan’s attorneys have agreed to the contract and will be signing it and 
returning it to the Town.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated the original task order is for $131,061, which was signed off on by the 
then Public Works Director for the work on the roads.  In 2016, there was a follow-up 
agreement that was needed for $21,600 and a second task order that would be 
considered a change order for $19,443 for geological services that was needed for the 
project.  The amount not-to-exceed is now for a fiscal impact of $172,078.50.  Staff has 
reviewed the policies and procedures to ensure that safeguards exist to prevent 
situations like this from occurring in the future.    
 
Ms. Garcia stated that since 2012, the amount of work done on the project has been 
less than $20,000 per year, which was why this was not found sooner.  She stated that 
the Town owes Willdan approximately $41,000 at the time the contract will be entered 
into.  Staff is requesting that the ratification be approved and the Town will remit final 
payment to Willdan.  She stated that all work associated with Willdan has been 
completed at this time and that the project is complete and done.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried 
to ratify the contract for the Diversion Dam Road Project with Willdan, in an amount not 
to exceed $172,078.50. 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, thanked everyone for their well wishes and 
prayers due to his medical situation.   

Mr. Billingsley stated an article appeared in the September 13, 2016 Casa Grande 
Dispatch’s, titled “Tax Friendly Florence, A Comfy Home for Retirees, the County Seat 
ranks 8th by analysts by a New York Tech Firm”.  He asked Council to review the article 
which is another honor and another thing the Town should leverage in terms of 
economic development going forward.     



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2016 
Page 7 of 9 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence Resident, requested that the June 29, 2016 HDAC minutes 
be amended to include the history of the reason for the plaque that was installed at the 
American Legion.   
 
Mr. Jim Tchida, Florence Resident, thanked Councilmember Anderson for taking time to 
go through Main Street and review the Streetscape Project.  He spoke to the business 
owners about the project and the possible impact on their businesses, but more 
importantly, documenting what was learned.   
  
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that some merchants on Main Street stated to him that 
the project has impacted their sales, while others weren’t sure of the impact as this is 
their slow season.  He stated that there were complaints of vibrations from the 
jackhammering.  He was glad that he met with the merchants and that they shared their 
concerns.  He stated that this project has taken ten plus years to come to fruition.  He 
stated that the project is time sensitive as there are many things that are planned on 
Main Street in the near future. He is eager for the project to be completed.     
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that Mr. Jerry Ravert wrote a letter to the editor in the 
September 15, 2016 local newspaper, in which he referred to the beautification project, 
specifically the removal of the acorn lights.  He stated that the article provides some 
mistruths regarding the acorn lights such as that the Council elected to remove the 
acorn light.  He clarified that the acorn lights were removed per the grant requirement.  
If the Town elected not to comply with the removal of the acorn lights the Town would 
lose the grant plus the Town would have to pay approximately $100,000 back and the 
Town would have nothing.  He stated that when things are said publicly as fact, 
especially when it is negative and false, it does not help the Town grow as well as it 
sheds a negative light on the Town.  It does not make the Town look like an appealing 
place.  He stated that all those that work for the Town work diligently to make Florence 
a great community.  Every Councilmember works to make the Town an appealing place.  
He asked that the facts be verified before publicizing their comments.   
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that the Movie in the Park was a successful event.  She likes 
that it was moved from Padilla Park.  The new location provided more open space.  She 
thanked everyone who attended.  She stated that Koko did not attend the event.  She 
asked that he provide a progress report to the Council outlining his progress, how many 
meetings he is having and how many students are attending the meetings.  She said at 
the event, some of the students needed redirection and Town staff stepped in and 
provided redirection.   
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that there will be a parade on October 21, 2016 and she has 
spoken with Mr. Knudson and Mr. Salas, Public Works Director regarding the 
Streetscape Project.  They believe the project will be completed by then; however, she 
knows the businesses are suffering a hardship.  There will be discussions in the near 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2016 
Page 8 of 9 

future regarding barricading the hazards on Main Street and asked staff to be open to 
the suggestions.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that there will be a benefit for Gabby Lara, who is battling throat 
cancer, at the Elk’s Club on October 15, 2016 at 3:00 pm.  Ms. Lara is a recent Florence 
High School graduate.  They are accepting donations for a raffle that they will have at 
the event, along with several other events.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that Town Hall will be lit purple in the month of October in 
awareness for Domestic Violence Awareness Month and the victims who have suffered 
domestic violence.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he and Councilmember Woolridge met with Dr. Jacklyn Elliott, 
Central Arizona College (CAC) President.  He discussed President Elliott’s ideas on the 
continuation of CAC and ways to assist the students with continual education.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he is not sure if the HDAC minutes can be amended but 
asked for the Town to issue a press release.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the minutes could be amended.  He asked staff to prepare a 
presentation on the erection of the plaque at the American Legion.    
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she is the liaison for the HDAC and stated that the 
plaque was discussed in detail when it was first brought up.  She said that she was 
amazed and had no idea of the history prior to that conversation.     
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that the Historical Society suggested the plaque and 
the American Legion purchased the plaque.  She stated that it is irrelevant who 
purchased it; however it needs to be acknowledged.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that Rose Mofford was the first female Governor of Arizona, who 
served when Governor Mecham was impeached.  She did not run for re-election.  She 
was the Secretary of State when she became Governor.  He stated that the LB Inn, 
when owned by the Lizarraga family, had a “Rose’s Corner” in the restaurant, in which 
they hung several photos of her.  He shared stories of her kindness and said she will be 
missed.     
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 6:44 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2016 
Page 9 of 9 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on September 19, 2016, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 











































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8a. 

MEETING DATE:  October 17, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Christopher A. Salas, Public 
Works Director/Town Engineer 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject:  AJP Electric Inc. Contract  for Traffic Signal     Meeting Date:  October 17, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

 
SUBJECT:   Approval of Contract with AJP Electric Inc., 
for traffic signal construction 

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the award of contract to AJP Electric Inc., for the construction 
of the future traffic signal, to be located at the intersection of Hunt Highway and 
Attaway Road, in an amount not to exceed $101,520.90. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
A Traffic Engineering Study was performed and sealed on January 7, 2015, for 
the intersection of Hunt Highway and Attaway Road.  Based on the analysis, two 
of the nine warrants were met and based on this criteria a traffic signal should be 
installed.  
 
Currently, the Town is borrowing portable traffic signal trailers from Pinal County 
but needs to return the trailers by January 1, 2017.  
 
Town staff would prefer to supply all the hardware to the contractor and only pay 
the contractor for labor.  This strategy can often save 25% to 30% of the total 
cost of building a traffic signal.  In order select the contractor without the 
construction documents being completed, the Town has chosen to use MCDOT’s 
Job Order Contracting (JOC) contract.  This particular JOC has very competitive 
prices and the prices are what would be expected if the project would be 
advertised for competitive bids through an Invitation for Bids (IFB).  The IFB 
process isn’t possible due to the construction documents not being completed 
and the January 1, 2017 deadline.  
 
This particular Request for Council Action includes: 
 

 Construction services 
 



Subject:  AJP Electric Inc. Contract  for Traffic Signal     Meeting Date:  October 17, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

The design of the signal is underway but not yet completed.  Because the design 
is not completed, the overall approval amount includes a 30% contingency. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The fiscal impact is $101,520.90 and will be funded by the Highway User Revenue 
Fund, Capital Improvement project titled “Attaway/Hunt Intersection Improvements”.  
There will be no impact to the General Fund. 
 
The Town and AJP Electric Inc. agree that this is entered into by the parties, 
as a cooperative purchase, pursuant to Maricopa County Intersection 
Improvements Services, MCDOT Contract # 2015-027, effective March 9, 
2016.   

Services will be obtained following the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Section 5.63 
Purchases of $25,000 or More (specifically, 5.6321 of Vendor Selection). 

5.632 Vendor Selection 

           5.6321 Alternative purchase methods are identified if approved by 
necessity or by the Town Manager as indicated by Emergency/Sole 
Source Purchase, cooperative purchase, state contract or any other 
method authorized. The Finance Director reviews for budget 
availability and bidding procedures. The Town Manager reviews for 
need. 

 Based on conversation with Maricopa County, AJP Electric was 
chosen as the best overall value.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Town Council authorize the award of contract to AJP 
Electric Inc., for the construction of the future traffic signal, to be located at the 
intersection of Hunt Highway and Attaway Road, in an amount not to exceed 
$101,520.90. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Construction Quote 
 MCDOT JOC Contract 

 



HUNT HIGHWAY AND ATTAWAY RD. TRAFFIC SIGNAL PROJECT 

TI482 Fee Proposal (7) 10f3 



--
HUNT HIGHWAY AND ATTAWAY RD. TRAFFIC SIGNAL PROJECT 

ii~!~~'a"]':'}' ~~~'IiJ:NE)Ea\~Me(!JNT~4M~~t <"til, ;tiE?G~ ;i;QlJ:i~ji}i!llf. '''Q,~:t]'~cOST;lliiii~~\ c" 
460.01000 REMOVE PAINT STRIPE LF. 600.00 $ 1.75 $ 1,050.00 

461.01100 4" WHITE TRAFFIC PAINT LF. 

461.01120 4" YELLOW TRAFFIC PAINT STRIPE LF. 

462.01100 4" WHITE THERMOPLASTIC TRAFFIC STRIPE LF. 700.00 $ 1.07 $ 749.00 

462.01200 4" YELLOW THERMOPLASTIC TRAFFIC STRIPE LF. 100.00 $ 1.07 $ 107.00 

485.02121 VIDEO DETECTION EQUIPMENT ASSEMBLY EACH APPROACH EACH 3.00 $ 500.00 $ 1,500.00 

$ -
$ -

TT482 Fee Proposal (7) 2 of 3 



HUNT HIGHWAY AND ATTAWAY RD. TRAFFIC SIGNAL PROJECT 

TOTAL PROPOSAL AMOUNT: 78,093.00 

SUBMITTING FIRM (Please Electric 

SIGNATURE and DATE of AUTHORIZED AGENT: 

NAME OF AGENT: IDIA_~A Cliffords 

TT482 Fee Proposal 30f3 















































































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8b. 

MEETING DATE:  October 17, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Scott Barber, HR Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Revised FY 2016-2017 Employee Classification 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject: FY2016-2017 Classification Plan (Revised)                                                   Meeting Date: October 17, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

Plan   Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1602-16:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE REVISED TOWN OF 
FLORENCE FY2016-2017 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Earlier this year, the U.S. Department of Labor enacted changes to the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, increasing the pay threshold for employees to be considered “exempt” 
from the Act’s overtime requirements from $23,660 to $47,476 per year.  Employers 
have a few options to choose from in order to come into compliance with Federal law.  
We have opted to change 6 Town classifications from “exempt” to “non-exempt”, 
effective December 1, 2016.  The recommended revised Employee Classification Plan 
reflects this change to the following classifications: 
 
  •Associate Engineer  •Parks Maintenance Superintendent 
  •Planner   •Court Administrator (not currently in use) 
  •Sr. Building Inspector •Facilities Manager 
 
Employees in these classifications will now be paid for any overtime worked. 
 
Staff has also been working with Public Works Director Chris Salas to move around 
several positions and employees within the department to both fill some vacancies and 
to utilize existing staff in the most efficient and effective manner.  This effort is not a 
departmental reorganization, but rather several moves to get the right people in the right 
places.  Over the past few months a couple of employees have been on temporary 
assignment in different roles and it is now time to make the necessary adjustments to 
our Classification Plan in order to move ahead in a more formal way.  The changes to 
the Plan are: 
 



Subject: FY2016-2017 Classification Plan (Revised)                                                   Meeting Date: October 17, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

▪New Water Superintendent and Wastewater Superintendent classifications at 
Pay Range 47.  The employee currently in the Utility Superintendent position will 
be moved to the Water Superintendent position.  The employee who has been 
leading the Wastewater Division since January will be formally moved into the 
Wastewater Superintendent position.  Therefore, the current Utility 
Superintendent position is being reclassified to Water Superintendent, and the 
current Senior Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator position is being 
reclassified to Wastewater Superintendent (we will retain the classifications in our 
Plan). 
 
▪New Facilities Maintenance Specialist classification at Pay Range 28.  This is 
being accomplished through the transfer and reclassification of a vacant Public 
Works Operations Technician position.  We will conduct an internal recruitment 
for this position when approved. 
 
▪New Fleet Services Supervisor classification at Pay Range 38.  This is being 
accomplished through the transfer and reclassification of a (filled) Maintenance 
Worker I position with the incumbent being promoted. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The FLSA-required changes will result in five employees being eligible for overtime 
compensation.  The Town Manager has directed; however, that department directors in 
the impacted departments manage employee work schedules within the designated 
work period to mitigate that impact.  The financial impact of the other changes will be 
handled within the existing FY2016-17 Public Works departmental budget(s). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1602-16 approving the FY2016-2017 
Employee Classification Plan (Revised). 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Town of Florence, FY2016-2017 Classification Plan (Revised) 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1602-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE FY2016-2017 
EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN.   

 
WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that it 

is necessary to comply with changes made to the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act as it 
relates to eligibility for overtime compensation, specifically changing the FLSA 
designation from “exempt” to “non-exempt” for the purposes of overtime eligibility for the 
following employee classifications, effective December 1, 2016: 

 
•Associate Engineer   •Planner   
•Senior Building Inspector  •Parks Maintenance Superintendent 
•Court Administrator   •Facilities Manager 

 
WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that it 

is necessary and desirable that several new classifications be added to the existing 
Town of Florence FY2016-17 Employee Classification Plan, specifically: 

 
•Water Superintendent   Pay Range 47 
•Wastewater Superintendent  Pay Range 47 
•Facilities Maintenance Specialist  Pay Range 28 
•Fleet Services Supervisor   Pay Range 38  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 

of Florence, Arizona, that the Town of Florence hereby adopt the amended Fiscal Year 
2016-2017 Employee Classification Plan. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 17th day of October, 2016. 
 
 
 
       ______      
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
    
 
   _______         
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



Page 1 of 4 
 

Town of Florence 
FY 2016-17 Classification Plan 

(Pay Range Order) 

As Amended 10/17/2016 
 

Position Classification 
Pay 

Range 
Minimum Midpoint Maximum FLSA 

Classified/ 
Unclassified 

Town Manager   Contract    

Town Magistrate   Contract    

Town Attorney   Contract    

Deputy Town Manager 69 $80,919 $105,089 $129,260 E UC 

Police Chief 68 $78,945 $102,526 $126,107 E UC 

Town Engineer 67 $77,020 $100,026 $123,031 E UC 

Fire Chief 66 $75,141 $97,586 $120,031 E UC 

Finance Director 

Public Works Director 

65 $73,308 $95,206 $117,103 E 
E 

UC 
UC 

Utilities Director 64 $71,520 $92,884 $114,247 E UC 

Community Development Director 63 $69,776 $90,618 $111,460 E UC 

Parks & Recreation Director 62 $68,074 $88,408 $108,742 E UC 

Human Resource Director 60   $64,794 $84,148 $103,502 E UC 

Assistant Town Manager 59 $63,214 $82,096 $100,978 E UC 

Deputy Public Works Director     E UC 

Information Technology Manager     E UC 

Police Lieutenant 58 $61,672 $80,093 $98,515 E C 

Assistant Town Attorney 57 $60,168 $78,140 $96,112 E UC 

Senior Civil Engineer     E C 

Town Clerk 56 $58,700 $76,234 $93,768 E UC 

Library Director 55 $57,268 $74,375 $91,481 E UC 

Fire Battalion Chief 54 $56,960 $72,561 $88,161 E C 

Grants/Assessment Manager 53 $55,571 $70,791 $86,011 E UC 

Senior Planner 51 $52,893 $67,380 $81,866 E C 

Accounting Manager 50 $51,603 $65,736 $79,870 E C 

GIS Coordinator     E C 

Police Sergeant     NE C 

Public Works Superintendent     E C 

  



Page 2 of 4 
 

Position Classification 
Pay 

Range 
Minimum Midpoint Maximum FLSA 

Classified/ 
Unclassified 

Assistant to the Town Manager 49 $50,344 $64,133 $77,922 E C 

Network Analyst     E C 

Police Support Services Manager 48 $49,116 $62,569 $76,021 E C 

Public Works Project Manager     E C 

Economic Development Coord. 47 $47,918 $61,043 $74,167 E UC 

Grants Coordinator     E UC 

Management Analyst     E UC 

Utility Superintendent     E C 

Wastewater Superintendent     E C 

Water Superintendent     E C 

Associate Engineer 46 $46,750 $59,554 $72,358 NE C 

Fire Captain     NE C 

Parks Maintenance 
Superintendent 

45 $45,610 $58,101 $70,593 NE C 

Planner 44 $44,497 $56,684 $68,871 NE C 

Court Administrator 43 $43,412 $55,302 $67,191 NE UC 

Police Officer 42 $42,353 $53,953 $65,553 NE C 

Public Safety Communications 
Supervisor 

    NE C 

Senior Building Inspector     NE C 

Facilities Manager 40 $40,312 $51,353 $62,394 NE C 

Fire Engineer     NE C 

Police Recruit     NE C 

Accountant 39 $39,329 $50,101 $60,872 NE C 

Finance Project Analyst     NE C 

Crime Analyst 38 $38,370 $48,879 $59,387 NE C 

Fleet Services Supervisor     NE C 

Graphic Design/Digital Media 
Specialist 

    NE C 

Information Technology Tech.     NE C 

Maintenance Foreman     NE C 

Deputy Town Clerk 37 $37,434 $47,686 $57.939 NE C 

Human Resource Coordinator     NE C 

Building Inspector 36 $36,521 $46,523 $56,526 NE C 

Field Foreman     NE C 

Firefighter     NE C 

Parks Maintenance Foreman     NE C 

Engineering Technician 

Office Supervisor 

34 $36,089 $44,282 $52,474 NE 
  NE 

C 
C 

Public Safety Dispatcher – Lead     NE C 

Recreation Coordinator     NE C 

Senior Center Coordinator     NE C 

Senior Treatment Plant Operator     NE C 

 



Page 3 of 4 
 

Position Classification 
Pay 

Range 
Minimum Midpoint Maximum FLSA 

Classified/ 
Unclassified 

Payroll Specialist 33 $35,209 $43,202 $51,194 NE C 

Code Compliance Officer 32 $34,350 $42,148 $49,945 NE C 

Maintenance Worker III     NE C 

Mechanic     NE C 

Sanitation Worker III     NE C 

Librarian 31 $33,513 $41,120 $48,727 NE C 

Engineering Technician Assistant 30 $32,695 $40,117 $47,539 NE C 

Police Evidence Technician     NE C 

Public Safety Dispatcher     NE C* 

Utility Billing Supervisor     NE C 

Administrative Assistant 29 $31,898 $39,138 $46,379 NE C 

Senior Court Clerk     NE C 

Water Plant Operator     NE C 

Accounting Technician 28 $31,120 $38,184 $45,248 NE C 

Assessment Specialist     NE C 

Facilities Maintenance Specialist     NE C 

Recreation Programmer     NE C 

Utility Services Representative     NE C 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Opr.     NE C 

Permit Specialist 27 $30,361 $37,253 $44,144 NE C 

Utility Systems Operator     NE C 

Maintenance Worker II 26 $29,620 $36,344 $43,068 NE C 

Sanitation Worker II     NE C 

Utility Services Operator 24 $28,193 $34,593 $40,992 NE C 

Court Clerk 23 $28,687 $33,749 $38,811 NE C 

Maintenance Worker I 22 $27,987 $32,926 $37,865 NE C* 

Police Records Clerk     NE C 

Sanitation Worker I     NE C 

Customer Service Representative 21 $27,304 $32,123 $36,941 NE C 

Library Assistant     NE C 

Office Assistant     NE C* 

Public Works Operations Tech.     NE C 

Senior Center Assistant     NE C* 

Mechanic Assistant 19 $25,989 $30,575 $35,161 NE C 

Fitness Trainer 18 $25,355 $29,829 $34,304 NE C 

Office Aide 17 $24,736 $29,102 $33,467 NE C* 

Custodian 16 $24,133 $28,392 $32,651 NE C 

Library Aide 15 $23,270 $27,377 $31,483 NE C* 

*All part-time positions are unclassified



Page 4 of 4 
 

Temporary Positions Assigned To Ranges For Convenience (hourly): 
 

Position Classification 
Pay 

Range 
Minimum Midpoint Maximum 

Pool Manager 18 $12.1899 $14.3408 $16.4923 

Heat Lifeguard 11 $10.2543 $12.0634 $13.8730 

Recreation Leader III     

Lifeguard II 5 $8.8423 $10.4024 $11.9629 

Recreation Leader II     

Lifeguard I 1 $8.0105 $9.4240 $10.8375 

Recreation Leader I     

Student Trainee     

 
 
 
Part-Time (Paid-On-Call) Fire Department Positions (hourly): 
 

Position Classification 
Pay 

Range 
Minimum Midpoint Maximum 

Part-Time Firefighter PT36 $13.25 $16.88 $20.51 

Part-Time Fire Engineer PT40 $14.63 $18.63 $22.64 

Part-Time Fire Captain PT46 $16.96 $21.61 $26.25 

 


	October 17, 2016 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6. PRESENTATIONS
	6a. Introduction of IT Interns
	6b. National Friends of Libraries Week Proclamation

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Sierra Transportation and Tech.
	7b. Elk's Lodge Sp Event Liq Lic App
	7c. Creative Paving Solutions LLC Contract
	7d.  Weagant Law Offices PLC Lease Agreement
	7e. National Community Planning Month Proclamation
	7f. September 6, 2016 Council Minutes
	7f. September 19, 2016 Council Minutes

	7g i. June 29, 2016 HDAC Minutes
	7g i. August 31, 2016 HDAC Minutes
	7g ii. June 15, 2016 Library Minutes
	7g iii. July 7, 2016 Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes


	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8a. AJP Electric Contract
	8b. Resolution No. 1602-16 Revised Class Plan - 2016-2017


